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Chairman’s Letter

Apr 18,2013

Last year, we witnessed volatile and complicated economic
conditions both in the domestic and international markets. The
Chinese economy was negatively affected by the combined impact
of reduced external demand in light of weak economic outlook and
conditions abroad and structural adjustments coupled with political
transition domestically. Meanwhile, the banking industry
experienced regular regulatory interventions, including the easing of
interest rate controls as the government took measures to stimulate

the economy.

For MSBIC, 2012 started well in terms of trading performance, but
the trend reversed in the second half as China’s economy slowed and
expected reserve and interest rate cuts did not occur. Despite all of
this, MSBIC’s profitability was approximately in line with that of
2011, all financial ratios met regulatory requirements, and with the
implementation of the intraday liquidity management framework,
funding and repo settlement operations risk has been mitigated to a

greater extent.

In 2012, MSBIC reviewed its medium to long term business plan
and is repositioning to become a niche market player in China.
Based on Morgan Stanley’s strong trading, risk managements and

product expertise, the bank will focus on developing trading, and
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providing financial solutions, to corporate and eventually to
individuals. This strategic direction is endorsed in principle by the
CBRC. MSBIC will play to Morgan Stanley’s strengths and core
competencies which may potentially result in broadening the product
range, acquiring a larger and more diversified deposit base and

expanding services. This has not yet been approved by shareholders.

The bank developed a workforce relocation plan to relocate
additional management resources, including department heads to the
headquarters, and it has taken steps to strengthen its Operations and

IT staff. Steps implemented in early 2013 include

e Location: Strengthened management team in Zhuhai Head
Office. The newly hired Head of Compliance, Chief
Information Officer, Head of Operations and Operational Risk
Manager are based in Zhuhai. While Head of Credit Risk,
Finance Controller and Internal Audit are transferred from
Beijing to Zhuhai. In addition, the objective is that the new
General Manager will be based in Zhuhai;

e Management: Clearly defining roles, responsibilities and
procedures;

e Performance Review: Commenced discussions on linking
compensation and performance more closely together;

e Upgrading the team: Appointed new Chief Risk Office. In the

process of recruiting the Beijing based Compliance Officer;
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e Increased training: Broadened the training scope with

increased focus on risk and management.

To further enhance governance as well as guidance and support
from the parent bank, the Board decided to appoint David Buckley,
CEO of MSBIL as a Director of MSBIC, and is in the process of
replacing Anthony Mullineaux with Agnes Lai to be Director of
MSBIC (yet to be officially approved by regulator). Both David and

Agnes are Management Committee members of MSBIL.

MSBIC has established a comprehensive framework to manage
intraday liquidity risk arising from settlement issues from risk
management perspective. This intraday liquidity management
framework is one of the many initiatives to improve risk
management comprehensively. Corresponding to the intraday
framework, additional intraday liquidity risk related policies and
procedures have also been established and intraday liquidity drills
and tests have been conducted. This intraday risk framework has six
components, particularly tailored to MSBIC’s trading business and

the settlement environment in which it operates.

In 2013, the bank is progressing in its repositioning in China and is
committed to growing in an orderly and prudent manner, ensuring
steady and stable growth. MSBIC’s management and Board will
take every effort to follow CBRC’s reasonable requirements and

expectations.
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China is a critical part of Morgan Stanley’s global strategy and it is a
priority. We are committed to this market with a long-term
investment and steady development strategy. With regulatory
support, parent support, dedicated board leadership, a strong bank
management team and through the joint efforts of all staff, the Board

is looking forward to continuing to grow MSBIC.

4

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

Chairman of



JEEAR P [ B fRA T () A R

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

HATH

BRI ARR:  ER LA E BT (PED AR
EREILAZFR:  Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited
#ERFEN: Carlos Alfonso Oyarbide
TR HbE: AR BRI T T KR LR 1885 Y K S 28
2801-2807 H.7C M 2816 H.7T
IRAHIRE: )R BRI T T ORSR L R 1885 B K A 28 )
2801-2807 5170 [t 2816 57T
BIREMEEH: 1984412 H14H
FEMELHR: | RE LT BUE R
AENVIENE PR NS . 440000400000859
& BVFRIIENLMSRES: B0O029H144040001
B EILS: % EBI7440401X17502779%5
BB 7440401X175027795
EENSTHITES 2R RSN S A R A
IpAHISE: T RE 2 AR K 22275 A NRE T L 30
BR%%: 200002



JEEAR P [ B fRA T () A R

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

BASIC INFORMATION

Registered Corporate Name in Chinese:

FERR PR E BRARAT (RED ARRA A

Registered Corporate Name in English:

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited
Legal Representative:Carlos Alfonso Oyarbide

Registered Address: 28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building,
No0.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, €hiRa

Office Address: 28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building, N0.188
Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, P. R. China

Date of First Registration: 14 December 1984

Authority of Registration:
Guangdong Provincial Administrative Bureau of Indysnd Commerce

Corporate Business License Serial Number440000400000859

Financial Institution License Serial Number: BO029H144040001
Tax Registration Certificate Number: 2 [EF{7-440401X1750277%
B B - 440401X17502779

Auditor : Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd

30/F Bund Center, 222 Yan An Road East, Shanghai@®) PRC
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INTRODUCTION OF MORGAN STANLEY
BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limitéthé Bank”) is
wholly owned by Morgan Stanley Bank Internationailted, a

subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.

The Bank, formerly known as Nan Tung Bank Ltd, Zahuhs a
wholly owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley since t8ajber 2006.
Established in 1984 with the approval from the ReepBank of
China, Nan Tung Bank was the first foreign-funde@nk
incorporated and headquartered in mainland Chin@inQ the past
two decades, the Bank has been operating fromeisl loffice in
Zhuhai and providing banking products and servitests target
clients. Subsequent to its acquisition by Morgaanf&ty, the Bank
officially changed its name on May 30, 2007 to MangStanley

Bank International (China) Limited.

The Bank’s ultimate holding company is a leadingbal financial
services firm that provides a wide range of investmbanking,
securities, investment management and wealth mamegeservices.
Morgan Stanley serves corporations, governmengsitutions and

individuals worldwide from more than 1300 offices42 countries.

11
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SHARERHOLD NAME AND CHANGES

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is thdesshareholder

of The Bank. There has been no change within thertieg period.
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SHARERHOLD BACKGROUND
Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited (“MSBIL. s a private
limited company duly incorporated on 23rd Februd809 and
existing in accordance with the laws of Englandjisteered at the
Companies Registration Office for England and Waliesder
number 3722571 and with registered office at 25 oCdbquare,
Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA, England. The priataguxtivity of
MSBIL is the provision of financial services to porations,
governments, financial institutions and individualSuch financial
services include the provision of loans and loanlitees, repurchase
tendering to the European Central Bank and tradwingpans and
financial instruments, including derivative contsaand repurchase
agreements. MSBIL holds a wholly owned subsidiaryChina —
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limitathd operates 1
branch respectively in each country of Italy, Gamgphand Korea.
MSBIL is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of k@an Stanley
and had total assets in excess of USD 106 billiontsa 2012

financial year-end.

i & N
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SHARERHOLD MEETING INFORMATION

MSBIL being the sole shareholder of the Bank, #utsugh its
Board of Directors. In 2012 the board of directof$/1SBIL:

o held regular quarterly meetings and ad hoc mgetvhen
required,;

0 received reports on the Bank that covered: 1kbtanpdates,
2) Strategic Initiatives, 3) Business updates, dhdinancial

updates

o MSBIL board of directors also approves directquivisor

nominees of the Bank and any new capital injegbiposals.

BRI DEM B A LA IR

20124F, Jo¥hnek DyiE M A . 43S E RS

CHANGE IN REGISTERED CAPITAL, MERGER OR
SPIN-OFF

There are no changes in registered Capital, memggin-off in 2012.

14
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

Functions of the Board

The board of directors shall be responsible toShareholder and
exercise the following powers in accordance witlevant laws and

the articles of association of the Bank:

(1) Formulating and amending the Bank’s articleasgociation;

(2) Determining the Bank’s business plans, investpéans and

strategic policies;

(3) Hearing, examining and approving the geneahager’s work

reports;

(4) Examining and approving the annual final aceswf the Bank

and plans for dealing with any surplus profits;

20
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(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

Appointing and dismissing the Bank’s seni@nagement
personnel and deciding on remuneration programdifectors,
supervisors and senior management personnel, guoindpg

external auditors;

Examining and finalizing the establishment #mel dissolution

of the Bank’s internal organizations;
Reporting to the Shareholder on a regularshasi

Approving the basic management system, inteues and

business plans for daily operations of the Bank;

Setting up various special committees, in atance with the
Bank’s needs and actual circumstances, for makaegstbns in
various areas on behalf of the board of directréor
providing expert opinions in various areas to thard of
directors, and for carrying out inspection and suvig@®n
activities with respect to the business situationsuch areas.
These special committees shall each have cleactolgs,

powers and responsibilities;

(10) Examining and discussing capital increaseital@duction,

share transfers and other important matters rglatinhe Bank;

(11) Determining and approving the establishmedttearmination

of business branches;

(12) Determining and approving the investment leyBlank in other

enterprises;

(13) Determining and approving profit allocatidans;

21
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(14) Approving any application for extension of teem of the
Bank;

(15) Approving the conduct of court proceedingbjteaitions and

other legal proceedings on behalf of the Bank; and

(16) Other powers as stipulated by laws and regust and the

Bank’s articles of association, or authorized by $hareholder.
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There were Six members on the Board of Directors ahe Bank

in 2012. Details are provided below:

1. Ms. Cathy Zeng studied in Wu Han University andhtiRenmin

University of China, obtained Bachelor of Econonmacsl Master of
Management. From Sep 1992- Oct 2001, she assumeeddad of
Euro Credit Desk, SAFE; From Oct 2001- Apr 2005¢ stas a
Director in Barclays Capital Asia; From Apr 20052011, she was
Executive Director, Head of Asia Sovereign Wealthundr

Distribution, Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd. On Sep 2@bl11, Cathy
was appointed as executive director of Morgan $tarBank

International (China) Limited (“MSBIC”) with the @poval from

CBRC Guangdong. Effective from January 6th, 201ath¢ was

appointed as MSBIC general manager with the appfowa CBRC.

2. Mr. Elton Cheung obtained Bachelor of Economicsjversity
of Sydney in May 1995, and Bachelor of Laws (Hohodmiversity
of Sydney in May 1997. He worked as a senior a#yprwith
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer in Hong Kong and dam from
January 1998 to September 2006. He was one ok#tkdttorneys
supporting the MS Firm’'s Merchant Banking Divisiagross the
entire Asia Pacific region from September 2006 sx&mber 2008.
Then he became the senior attorney on the Chinal kegm in
Morgan Stanley from December 2008 to June 2010nRhane 2010
to present, he assumed the Head of the China Ltegah that
provides legal support across all of Morgan Stdsle§hina

businesses, including its onshore as well as oféshasiness
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platforms. Effective from April 1st, 2011, Elton svappointed as
MSBIC director with the approval from CBRC Guangdon

3. Mr. Carlos Alfonso OYARBIDE was a partner of C.EEA
from March 1979 to May 1980. He acted as a managarther at
McKinsey & Company from August 1982 to December3.98rom
January 1986 to May 1988, he was a director of M&ah Bank in
charge of the finance department. He also workedB& Philips &
Drew as an Executive Director supervising the foeadepartment.
Mr Oyarbide joined Morgan Stanley in July 1993 avatked for the
Firm until May 2003; in this decade, he held vasigpositions
including Managing Director and Head of Mergers &oMisitions
of Morgan Stanley Europe Ltd, Managing Director addad of
Mergers & Acquisitions of Morgan Stanley Asia Ltas well as
CEO of Morgan Stanley Spain Ltd. In 2003, he joind8S as a
Managing Director and Asia Pacific Head of Finahdmestitutions
Group from June 2003 to July 2007. From July 20@Wards, he
has been a Managing Director of Morgan Stanley Asthand the
Chief Operating Officer of Morgan Stanley China. Sep 2008
Carlos was appointed as director of MSBIC with #pgroval from
CBRC Guangdong. Effective from Aug 27, 2010, Carleas
nominated as MSBIC chairman after obtaining thereygd from
CBRC.

4. Mr. Anthony Philip MULLINEAUX was qualified as an @A

and acted as Financial Statement Auditor to varimascial
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institutions, mainly within the insurance industnyjth Coopers
Lybrand from September 1989 to November 1993. Hee
Morgan Stanley in November 1993, initially as aafwaial controller
for European investment grade bonds at Morgan 8ta&l Co.
International Limited. From January 1995 to Mar€l®2 he moved
to Morgan Stanley UK Group as European Debt Capltakets and
Interest Rate Structured Bonds Controller, Europdaad of Asset
Swap Controllers, European Head of Emerging Markétsset
Swaps, Credit Derivative Controllers and Europeaaddof Fixed
Income Derivative Product Controllers Projects Te&mom April
2002 to March 2003, he became European Head ofl Hxeome
Division Management Reporting and Operations Offici®
European Head of Fixed Income Controllers. FromilA2003 to
June 2005, he worked as European Head of CreditPanduct
Controllers of Morgan Stanley UK Group. From Jun@02 to
August 2007, he was European Head of Fixed IncamieExuities
Valuation Review Group in Morgan Stanley UK Growyhere he
was responsible for the independent audit of firdnostruments.
From September 2007 until present, he has beemdéae of the
Finance Control Group across the Asia Pacific (@kolg Japan) and

Australasia region at Morgan Stanley.

5. Ms. Amanda Zhao studied in Renmin University of righiand

obtained her Bachelor degree of Law in 1994. Frog 1994 to
Dec 1995, Ms Amanda Zhao worked for ChemChina Gioupales,
Import & Export Dept. Since Jan 1996, she worketthwthe Mizuho
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Corporate Bank, Beijing Branch as the Senior Actaniand then
Senior Loan Officer. Almost during the time from3Bto 1999, she
continued to pursue the master degree in Chineadeiuy of Social
Sciences. From April 2000 to Sep 2009, she workedtlee
representative with Landesbank Baden-Wuerttemlizaigng office.
In Sep 2003. Ms, Amanda Zhao joined Citic Ka WamiBaeijing
Representative Office as Chief Representative.eSian 2006, she
became the Head of the Preparatory Office of G&dNah Bank. In
Oct 2006, she played a role as First Vice Presjdénina Banking
Dept. in Citic Ka Wah Bank, Hongkkong. In March 30@he was
appointed as Beijing Branch manager of Citic Ka V&ank until
Aug 2008, and she held the concurrent post as #pputy General
Manager during the time from June 2010 to Aug 2020. Aug,
2010, Ms. Amanda Zhao joined Morgan Stanley and aygsoved
by CBRC Beijing as Beijing Branch manager lateNmv 2010. On
April 27th 2011, Amanda was appointed as director of MSBIC
with the approval from CBRC Guangdong. Effectivenfr April
28th, 2011, Amanda was appointed as MSBIC deputyergd

manager with the approval from CBRC Guangdong.

6. Mr. Shangquan Gao graduated from the Faculty oh&weucs of
St. Paul's University in Shanghai with a degre&aonomics. He is
the Chairman of the China Society of Economic Refothe
Chairman of China Enterprise Reform & Developmeonti&y, the
President of China Institute for Reform and Devaiept (Hainan),

and a member of the United Nations Developmentioli
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Committee. He is also a professor and doctoriaisadvat Beijing
University, Shanghai Jiaotong University and Nankkuiversity,
and the President and Professor of the School ofalglement,
Zhejiang University. Mr. Gao has been an independéector of
the Bank since September 2006.
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Senior Management Members:

The senior management of the Bank, under the Ishigeof the
Board of Directors, is responsible for managing they-to-day
operations of the Bank. The members of the Seniandgdement
Committee are:

1. Ms. Cathy Zeng studied in Wu Han University anchtiRenmin

University of China, obtained Bachelor of Econonmacsl Master of
Management. Sep 1992- Oct 2001: Head of Euro Cioestik, SAFE;
Oct 2001- Apr 2005: Director, Barclays Capital Astgpr 2005 to
Present: Executive Director, Head of Asia Soveralgealth Fund
Distribution, Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd. On Sep 2@0il1, Cathy

was appointed as executive director of MSBIC whie approval
from CBRC Guangdong. Effective from January 6th120Cathy
was appointed as MSBIC general manager with theoapp from

CBRC.

2. Ms. Amanda Zhao studied in Renmin University of riéhand

obtained her Bachelor degree of Law in 1994. Fraiy 1994 to
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Dec 1995, Ms Amanda Zhao worked for ChemChina Gioupales,
Import & Export Dept. Since Jan 1996, she workethwhe Mizuho
Corporate Bank, Beijing Branch as the Senior Actantand then
Senior Loan Officer. Almost during the time fromaBto 1999, she
continued to pursue the master degree in Chineadéky of Social
Sciences. From April 2000 to Sep 2009, she workedtle
representative with Landesbank Baden-Wuerttemligaigng office.
In Sep 2003. MsAmanda Zhao joined Citic Ka Wah Bank, Beijing
Representative Office as Chief Representative.eSitam 2006, she
became the Head of the Preparatory Office of G#HdNah Bank. In
Oct 2006, she played a role as First Vice Presjdéhina Banking
Dept. in Citic Ka Wah Bank, Hongkkong. In March 30@he was
appointed as Beijing Branch manager of Citic Ka Vi&nk until
Aug 2008, and she held the concurrent post as #puty General
Manager during the time from June 2010 to Aug 2020. Aug,
2010, Ms. Amanda Zhao joined Morgan Stanley and aygsoved
by CBRC Beijing as Beijing Branch manager latemMNov 2010. On
April 27th 2011 Amanda was appointed as director of MSBIC

with the approval from CBRC Guangdong. Effectivenfr April
28th, 2011, Amanda was appointed as MSBIC deputyergd
manager with the approval from CBRC Guangdong.

3. Ms Cristine Wang, obtained the bachelor of accaogntin

Capital University of Economics and Business, Chertified
Public Accountant, international Certified Interr@liditor and the

qualification of securities. From September 2002ty 2007,
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Cristine assumed the senior auditor in Ernst & Yptdua Ming.
From July 2007 to July 2010, Cristine joined JPMaorghase Bank
(China) Limited as senior auditor. On July 2010jstire joined
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limiteak internal

auditor.

4. Ms. Linda Li obtained her Bachelor Degree of Acdamcy

from Harbin Institute of Technology. And she alsarred the
qualification of CPA in China. From September 1986Viay 2003,
she worked for the Dandong Branch of The Industryd a
Commercial Bank of China as Accounting Manager.impurJune
2003 to July 2006, she worked with Standard ChedteBank
Shanghai Branch as Finance Supervisor. From A6 to May
2007, she worked in Development Bank of Singaparé&iaancial
Project Manager. On June 2007, she joined Unitedrs&as Bank
acted as the head of Finance Department. Sincai&igb2009, she
joined MSBIC and now takes the position as the tefate Finance

Department.
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Composition of the Board of Supervisors and its Wdk

Functions of the Board of Supervisors
The board of supervisors shall constitute the Barddpervisory
organization, responsible to the Shareholder, i@ following

powers:

(1) Exercising scrutiny over the acts of the dioestand senior
management personnel in the performance of thetreguhat
contravene laws and regulations or the articleassbciation of the
Bank; bringing forward proposals for the removakafy director or
senior management member who violates any law, radtrative
regulation, the Articles of Association or any hesion of the

Shareholder’s meeting;

(2) Requesting the rectification of any acts ofdivectors and
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senior management personnel that harm the righdsirdarests of
the Bank, Shareholder, employees, deposit custonmrsother
interested parties; organizing the investigationaofd proposing

solutions for major cases;

(3) Examining and monitoring the Bank’s financiaitiaities, and

examining the Bank’s annual final accounts;

(4) Reporting to the Shareholder on the status akvwperformance

of the directors and senior management personnel,

(5) Initiating actions against directors or senioranagement
according to Article 152 of the PRC Company Law lenpented,
and which may be amended from time to time, effectrom 1st

January 2006; and

(6) Other powers as stipulated by laws and reguiati and the

Bank’s articles of association, or authorized by $hareholder.

The supervisors have the right to attend but nt¢ &b meetings of

the board of directors.
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Composition of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors is composed of three sigms, and
their detailed information is as follows:

1. Mr. Christopher Jackson holds a bachelor degrem ftondon
University and a masters degree from CASS, City vesity
London. From 1989 to 1995 he worked in London areavN ork
for Merrill Lynch in Corporate Finance and Debt @abMarkets
positions. Mr. Jackson has been based in Asiaesi®®5. In this
region, he has had responsibility for Debt Capilarkets coverage
and management of Fixed Income and Equity businésstructure.
Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Mr. Jackson's m&stent role was
the Chief Administrative Officer for the Asia PacifEquities
business at Lehman Brothers from 2003 to 2008.J&ltkson joined
Morgan Stanley in October 2008 as the Chief Opsya®fficer of
the Asia Pacific IRCC Division. In this role Mr. ckson is
responsible for maintaining operational standars @xcellence in
all the products functions of the business as wsllaligning the
business with the Global & Regional franchises.. déickson is also
responsible for planning and executing the stratggowth of the

business in the region.
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2. Mr. Brett Dugald Cameron Graham graduated from Qslead

University with Honours in Law in 1987. Prior toinsng Morgan
Stanley in June 1997, he was an associate at @ifthance in
Hong Kong and Tokyo, and prior to that he did kigdl training and
worked as a solicitor, at Morris Fletcher and Crdassbane (now
Minter Ellison), and Hashidate Law Office in TokyBrett was the
Co-Chairman of Morgan Stanley’s Franchise Risk Cdtem for
Asia Pacific. Brett was previously the Deputy HeafdLegal for
Asia Pacific. Brett Graham was based in Hong Kargl became a
Managing Director of Morgan Stanley in 2005. Biistthe General

Counsel for Morgan Stanley for the Asia Pacificioag

3. Ms. Fang Zheng, female, majored in International
Finance, studied in University of International #uess and
Economics (UIBE) fm 1989 to 1993 & got the econorachelor
degree. From Jul 1993 to May 1998, she worked im&iNam
Kwong National Import & Export Corporation as thesiness
manager. From Jun 1998 to Aug 2000, she workedenHongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBCijiBg Branch
as the Senior Checker in Trade Services Dept. Fi@98 to
2001, she studied for the MBA in University of Imtational
Business and Economics (UIBE) & got the MBA degifeé®m Dec
2001 to Sep 2002, she worked in Sino Guaranty Qb dd the
Deputy General Manager for Financing Guarntee DEpim Oct
2002 to Jun 2006, she worked as the Section He&dealfit
Operations Department and Relationship Officer ofpOrate &
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Institutional Department. From Jun 2006 to April12Q Fang
worked in Deutsche Bank (China) Co. Ltd BeijingaBch as a VP
in Operations. Fang joined Morgan Stanley Bank rh@gonal
(China) Limited (MSBIC) Beijing Branch in April 2@Las an Ops
VP.
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Risk Management

During 2012, strictly following the management regments of the
regulatory authority and the Board of Directorge Bank continued
to make active efforts in promoting proactive ammmprehensive
risk management, which provided strong supportht dtable and
vigorous operation of the Bank. The Board of Dioestof the Bank
and its subordinate Risk Committee, the Senior Maneent ,Credit
Management Committee, Operational risk Managememr@ittee
and Assets & Liabilities Management Committee aniheo
specialized management committees, the Risk Managem
Department, the Internal Audit Department and th@m@liance
Department constitute the main organizational stimec for risk
management of the Bank, and directly manage allikiaf risks
through vertical management.

|. Credit Risks

Credit risk is defined to be the loss due to deféoin borrower or
counterparty, it is considered to be a primary rgkthe Bank’s
operation. By establishing a scientific and compredive credit risk
management framework, the Bank provides directiond a
standardizes the credit business activities anditcrisk monitoring

process.
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During 2012, in a continual active response to ¢hanges in the
macroeconomic situation, the Bank implemented stabd prudent
credit policies with focus on expanding low-riskgiiquality
enterprises.

During the same year, the Bank adopted a more ptudedit
strategy and made appropriate adjustments on #uit guortfolio,
with its year-end credit assets, including loansl aavances to
customers amounted to RMB 594,283,000, represeitidgcrease
of 19.2% over the end of 2011. This was mainlyilaited to the
general slowdown in loan demand during the persodh that some
loan customers did not renew their loans when radtuMoreover,
the Bank maintains its prudent risk acceptancedstas when
selecting new loan customers and loan amountsngineertainties
under the local and international macroeconomigrenments.
Quiality of credit assets

The Bank's target customers are primarily domdstige leading
corporations, with no exposure to relatively higgknindustries like
real estate or industries that are seriously atebly overcapacities.
In 2012 there was no loan classification migratexmd no non-
performing loans, hence loan migration rate and-penfiorming
loan ratio remained nil. The classification of dflan assets
continued to be at Normal.

The Bank classified its credit assets into fiveelsvin accordance
with “the Guidance on Loan Risk Classification” prolgated by
China Banking Regulatory Commission and with coasation of its

internal management requirements. In 2012, alttbdit assets
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were in Normal category according to this five-legkassification
and there were no bad loans recorded. This waslyriz@éeause both
the existing loans and the newly added loans duhagear were all
from high-quality large corporate loans.

For a loan and advance to customer that show itioicaof
impairment, the Bank assesses the credit asseigidually for
impairment and makes impairment individually. Foedit assets
that are not deemed to be impaired, the Bank asséiss loans and
advances to customer collectively for impairmetntccording to
evaluation, as of December 31, 2012, the totaliceesbets of the
Bank were RMB 594,283,000 with no NPLs recordelde Bank
provided loan loss provision amounting to RMB5,908, by using
collective assessment method and provided nil prowiby using
individual assessment method.. Pursuant to theraeteregulatory
requirements, the Bank actually made a general rederves
reversal of RMB 12,839,000 with the 2012 year endhualative
balance ending at RMB 26,421,000. The balance efréserves
accrued by the Bank satisfied the relevant regotaequirements.
Concentration risk

The Bank strictly follows the requirements of thegulatory
authority to prudently manage the degree of loamcentration. By
the end of 2012, the ratio of single largest boaoaver the overall
loan balance was 7.47% and the ratio of relatety p@ans over the
overall loan balance was zero, both in compliarcceéhe relevant
regulatory requirements.

Risks in securities investment
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As of December 31, 2012, all the investments ofBaek were in
trading financial assets, with the balance of RMB09,407,000. In
terms of investment structure, the domestic investnof the Bank
mainly involved Chinese government bonds, PBOG laitid policy
bank bonds. Therefore the credit risks of the itmests of the Bank
are relatively low.

ll. Market Risk Management

Market risk refers to the risk of losses in the Baron-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet business due to adverse ehamgarket
prices. The Bank’s market risks mainly include iast rate risk and
foreign exchange risk.

The Bank is a domestic incorporated bank undesstipervision of
CBRC. Therefore, the Bank has established regustiand
procedures according to the group's risk managempelities and
domestic regulatory requirements for better managerof market
risk as a legal entity. To achieve the above maeetiopurpose, a
Market Risk Manager is appointed to monitor the IBaumarket risk
management, to ensure it is complied with the edlaegulations
and procedures.

Forthe Bank's primary trading business (bond itmaests-
government bonds, PBOC bills, Policy bank bonds emgborate
bonds), limit excession management is supportedusing the
FLOW system (a market risk limit system). Any limKcession
must be explained and responded by relevant depat$m

Market Risk Manager is responsible to monitor mankek and

reports to Asset and Liability Management Commitied Risk
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Committee. The Bank has established and enhanceklemiask

limit management system; formulated standardizeticipe and

procedures; and delivered effective market risk agament
reporting system. In addition, Internal Audit Dejpaent performs
audit on market risk management on a regular dasensure the
system is operating effectively and is sufficiend &fficient.

lll. Operational Risks

Operational risk refers to the risk of financial other loss, or
potential damage to a bank’s reputation, resuftiogn inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, resources, regsteor from

external events (e.g., fraud, legal and compliatgles, damage to
physical assets). The Bank may incur operatiosél across its full
scope of business activities, including revenuesgaing activities
(e.g., sales and trading) and support functiorgs,(El and facilities

management). As such, the Bank may incur operdtiigiain each

of its Divisions, as well as in each Oversight Grou

The Bank has established an operational risk gewe structure,
management strategy and policy in order to prdteeBank to have
continued development. The revision of above gouare structure,
strategy and policy has approved by the Board oéddors. The
Operational Risk Committee is subsequently forneedhainage the
operational risk.

The operational risk management aims to establishoeerall

standard of operational risk measures to mitiggterational risks
within the Bank's operation scope. This involvesk nmeasurement,

evaluation and management. This is achieved thrtugh
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cooperation of the Bank's Operational Risk Commjtt&enior
Management Committee and all department heads totoncand

manage the operational risk, minimize the possydf error arising
from operational risk. The main objective of theentification,

capture and management of operational risk incident identify

the control failure and root cause of the issue #rad mitigation
actions to resolve the issues. The Bank implemeatdédm-wide

risk and control self-assessment (RCSA) in 2018, aso the Bank
has improved the related internal control procasaccordance with
action plans suggested by Internal Audit Departmdime Bank
revises and improves operational risk managementepures
through monthly operational risk meeting and openal risk

management reports. Issues are promptly reportedsenior
management particularly in the areas that have rrahtgperational
risk.

In conclusion, the Bank has established an ope@tiaisk

management system in accordance with the busirsssen scale
and complexity of the bank. The system is capabladentify,

monitor and control/release operational risks iretiactive manner.

IV. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcyisad from the Bank's
failure to provide sufficient funds for the decreas liability or the

Increase in assets. Liquidity risk can also be edury the mismatch
between the amount and maturity between assetsiamlity. The

Bank has set up the frame of liquidity risk managetm focusing on

guantization of amount and resources of currentpanential cash
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flow, identification of extra demand of fund raisédm stressing
scenario and evaluation of fund can be obtaineoutiit mortgage
and non- mortgage borrowing.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee impdats
efficient liquidity management, identify and corttbe short and
long-term liquidity risk, ensure the Bank operategh prudent
liquidity environment, and at the same time alsoeimé¢he
requirement of the Bank’s daily operating funding.

With the report on each department’s funding resuegnts and
related maturity every day, Treasury manages exaEss to control
the funding surplus or shortage by currency. Whikeasury overall
manages liquidity risk and FCG calculates liquidigtated ratios
and develops liquidity reports. They partner vather departments
to ensure that liquidity related regulatory reqoients for foreign
banks operating in China are met.

The Bank has implemented Contingency Funding Plan
(including liquidity stress test) and reports tosés and Liability
Management Committee on a monthly basis. The maipgse
of liquidity stress test is to ensure the Banktils @ble to carry out
normal operations within a year under credit crunend
liquidity crisis situations.

In conclusion, the Bank has established a compe2bhenrisk
management framework which suits the nature, scapel

complexity of its business.
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Morgan Stanley Bank International (China)Limited
(MSBIC) Internal Audit Annual Work Report for 2012

Internal Audit prepares and submits its Internatliddnnual Work
Report for 2012 in accordance with CBRC guidelinEse audit

status and accomplishments of Internal Audit fat2@re as follows:

1. Internal Audit reported to the MSBIC Audit Conttee in
every quarter of 2012 to update the Audit Commitbee the
overall control environment of MSBIC, audit plaratsis, high
risk audit findings and any significant mattersdisagreements,

of which there were none.

2. Internal Audit completed the following audits R012

according to the approved audit plan:
* General IT Controls and Outsourcing Management
* Regulatory Reporting
* Anti-Money Laundering
 Emergency Response and Precautionary Measures (BCP)

 Consolidated Review of Regulatory Required Audits:
Related-Party Transactions, and Fraud PreventiamirGlo

and Trading and Market Risk Management

The list of audits and a summary of their findirggs provided

in the Appendix to this report.

3. There was a fraud prevention review added to tHe? 2Qudit

plan according to the Notice on Operational Risk Braud
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Prevention Control for Foreign BanKsh [E 4R 5 <5750 A 75T
Tnam A AR AT HRAE XU A S4B i I TAERE40) and the
Guidelines for Fraud Prevention, Post Rotation, oAt

Reconciliation and Internal Audif ¢ TR 2 4B, V5524t
v XIS B A R ESR A TAER L) .

4. The Audit Committee approved the 2013 internal apidin in
January 2013, with audit scope covering Beijingrigrg
Operations Settlement, MSBIC Governance, Anti-Money
Laundering, Emergency Response & Precautionary iteas
(BCP) and Consolidated Review of Regulatory Regufeadits,
including Related-Party Transactions, and Fraudd®ton
Control and Trading and Market Risk Management@ticer
Regulatory Required Audits.
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Appendix: 2012 Audits and Findings

Audit

Rating

Findings and Risks Summary

General IT
Controls and
Outsourcing
Management

Satisfactory

Internal Audit identified one Highkifinding related to MSBIC management’s inadequate

monitoring of outsourcing activities to ensure theffectiveness. This resulted in a numbe
of deficiencies, including the lack of risk and feemance assessments around MSBIC’s
outsourcing activities; no Central Review Teamaevdf applicable outsourcing activities

no formal management approval of the MSBIC OutsogrPolicy; no management signoff

on Task Orders for Financial Control Group outsmgcalthough services had already
begun; and no clear ownership over maintenancetsbarcing related documentation. M
of these deficiencies involve inter-affiliate outscing.

In addition, management self-identified or parjia@élf-identified two Moderate risk
findings. They relate to deficient labeling of netl cables, vendor use of nonstandard
patch cords, delays in first-aid certification rela¢ and absence of Automated External
Defibrillator devices in the Zhuhai office. The rew also identified two Low risk findings
related to lack of evidence of fuel storage maiatee for the building power generator, a
missing processes for hardware disposal, whichsetisdentified.

Regulatory
Reporting

Satisfactory

Internal Audit identified three Moderaisk findings related to the following: regulato
notices, in some instances, were not disseminateslyt by an administrative staff in the
Beijing Branch to the Compliance department; Coargle lacks an effective tool to track
and monitor Bank-wide regulatory notices received geviewed as well as the actions
taken; and Finance has not secured a shared foltles L drive to restrict inappropriate
access. The audit also identified two Low risk fings related to the following: Finance’s
lack of an effective process to ensure that theatsheets sent to the U.S. and UK
Controllers are the same spreadsheets that thegesareviewed and approved; and
Compliance’s lack of a coordinated effort to revi@waccuracy and completeness of the
of regulatory reports submitted to the CBRC.

Anti-Money
Laundering

Satisfactory

Internal Audit identified three Moderaisk findings. The first finding identified thdie
MSBICAML Internal Control Policy was not adequatetynmunicated to the AML
Committee for approval. Consequently, the AML Comtea has not been performing
certain AML functions as stipulated in the polidhe second finding related to a lack of
periodic review by Compliance of access to a shéolglér, which contains AML-related
sensitive information such as client data. Thedtfimding noted a lack of timely follow-up
with employees who did not attend the mandatory MSBML training.

DSt

nd

list

Emergency
Response &
Precautionary
Measures (BCP)

Satisfactory

No audit finding.

Integrated Review
of Regulatory
Audits

Needs
Improvement

Internal Audit identified two High risk findings leted to the following: Supervision of th
MSBIC trader is weak. The trader, upon the instouncof his Hong Kong-based supervis
executed non-arms-length internal spot trades letWwSBIC and the MSBNA affiliate o
six occasions during the period from August 20ldulgh October 2012 that resulted

transfers of $1.4 million in profits cumulativeffom MSBNA to MSBIC; Inappropriate

entittements remain allowing write-access to taels onshore trading books. There is g
no onshore approver from MSBIC to approve accesleznents to the bank’s tradin
books, This is a repeat issue from the prior audit.

In addition, the review identified four Moderatéskrfindings. These relate to late disclos
and reporting of the related-party list to the Rbaf Directors and Supervisors, lack
independency in the client account reconciliatioocpss, incomplete adherence to
procedures for test trades, and absenteeism bgr&&m the intra-day liquidity crisis drill

re
of
the

Note: Internal Audit tracks the remediation actiarisall High risk findings quarterly and reviewsetihemediation of
Moderate and Low risks findings in the next audit.
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X BOE 2 B AR A TR, ARAT AERE SRR Is FIPRTT SR AR A I F R AT 24 51AR 1] 301
B K T Fof AR D 002 55 (AL e R AT D ST DA B AT SR A 0T 2 IR 55 JlAS i 25 M 55 1A A
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FEIR 55 2 & [F 2 2 A B S BRI 55 8ok &R, B0y sl 1 B I8 s sl $ th 457
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MRYEW B 20124 3 H 30 HiAi (1 (sgxiiaib e s gt B B M) (M 42[2012]20 )
FAHRRLE IR, b Aol B 2R 5 SRRt 0, LE 4% Py A R 9 b 0 IR
77 I Wk ) DRUBSIR T8 T2 B AT, 0 5 W AE R A T B o XTI A XU Ay 1 e T 8 ™ DB
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B HE R AR U E AN T XU B R A8 1.5%
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WM ) (SRl AP R IR HE % SR HUE PRI R) (W <2[2005]49 5 ) KA SR E 12K
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b
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XA L ST H RS B 2 T (228, A SR A B A 5
WNE 2 BB I vl LIRS 2 FETH B LA 10 25T AR DK T A7 55 VR R Al 2 T F 200 A 1)
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AR AR DAL A3 800 R, A . (1032 SE TSR 98 7

PR H, X T E AR B S E P AR 0, ARAEBA R, 2 MUY R A
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B35 HA TR A A ZR 5 e 2t BITAT 4 A 2t (K05 2 A IGUAT 5% 1) =4 391 BT 4 B AT 328 S P 45 B 1
A FAR LR G W BT AT BB Ak, HeAx 24 S P A BRI 28 P 49 850 2 ] sl ot vE N =4 3015

O AAGER H Ok A BT AR B MK IR A AT SR A%, R AR KRAR T BETCTL ARG AL W (1)
AR I A5 0P AR A3 SE TSR B 7 1 R e, U9 3 S BT B B8 7 K T . #EAR
R BEIRAF AL G [ N AL BTN S S ) 800 LAFE [
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ST LI SRR, B B DAl 4 S sl R A 557 L S R S R AT, A
WRAT P BB 7= K = T A B 7 o LR I B3 g i o

ST DL s S T AR 0 S ST B 1 e BUR, LI S P A3 B B8 7 A
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IIRITIER RN R 25 G 55
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TR, AHAT RO R T2 3%, ZAEDER A AARBUT B ik

5. Iz v BRI R B 0 B SR 2 VAL PR A R OGS BRI AN A 5 IR 3%

AT HIINE 4 Prifid it BORE R, i T2aimsiE A Er:, ARITH
SO TGV NER vE R R T H A O (e AT A Al TR B, IX LA il A B
AT ARATEELZ L R Wy 220, FFAEZ% BB AL O I 22 2 ml B AR ). SERR IR &5
Rl Be 5 ARAT G THFAEZE ST

ARATRIATIA S Al o AVE A Fr 2 (Rl BT e R, ST A BEAUY
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AT A TR i i< i TR, Gl &R E VA e A e . ARAT M
(R 2 B AR M DL e ST 4% . AT T 61 A B 5 A S 0 T IR T RS i 378
BN AR MM IAESE T HBEAT A 7o IX LA I DN BB IR AR 20t il L (1 2 Se {2 57
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TEH PTG (IR K

BRAERET BRI A E DTSN, ARATIE TRE R AR DU A & AT YRR ME 5 (K 0P
fitio X T2 B b B AR DR I B B i AR A B> (DT AL, AHRAT IR AL 2 A AR T
THEARRIL G (B G EAT PN, DUR E 2 5 Bt SRR A o R B R MK
B PG EE R WA & AN I SEAPIRGU A A T AMIIAR AR, AR AN
JEILFK), BUHEL T TS UL & WA HOE 2 [ K et S GPROL I A RIS . X R
AR A5 P RS AR AR 2 WOl AP U 38 P DR AL 5 B8 7, ASHRA TR SR ABL B 7 1) 7 B 43
RZEBAE D W EAZ BT 5 AR R IR A o ANGRAT 23 72 J01 5 B0 ARG 1 <A
IS TRV BEA T A v B A8 T R A e, DA PH DTk IR AR 3E SR AN S B SR 13 R D2
(A PR 22 57 o
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AATHEIEH e G s, AT 8 5 H B R (B S5 A BT 547 AR € I A E
P73 T H 2 15 RS AE BT 81 S ZEBUM L LRI H ik W ROX LB 55 S I00 (1) e N E 4h
RIF I G AE 2257, WZ P2 SR e de U\ g ST TR) 1) 24 301 B 43 B A 48 P 43 5
PR AR o

AP 1B vE " R B

B AE Fr A BB S A, ARIE B E 2 BRI 3% B8 B £ S T ] (14 3 B
PR AEARAT AT REAT AL W8 (K N AN 19 ORI 7 B BRE Y, AHRAT 5L AT AR HI 1Y)
AR5 4R A G A BT AR 5 7 o K T LA B A KSR IR R T AR R B g B BT 49400
BRI TR) AT <B 0 A S8 P B, AR A DA PR3 S BT A58 8 7 A A7 {5 1Y) < 0
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6. F R0
Jiie B

R 20074 3 A (h A NERICHIE A2 (LR fipR B b Biis”) , A4
17 H 20084F 1 ] 1 HELIUEr b BTGB S AR S IRUE T A Bl AREE (545
TR AU ANV T A3 0 BC M AR BRETA T M%) (W F[2008]105) M2 (TS AIBARML BT S8t
MU BT INED (B4 [2008]28 ) e, AHAT I SCHUBSEAT G0 TH 0. r e B
TG, TEETES WBOREE 1 P B CE B 2

F i [ & [20071395 ([ 55 B o T i it eV B A B i VA BB P 4 ), Ao lb g2 B R B
AT BEE A BA 1T BOE RO SO e =52 AV TS Bt SR, 42 DA TN St )% -
H 200841 H 1 Hild, JERARBCRIEBERPIAMNY, EFBLIT/E 5 4N IE 0 o 217k
ERR, Horh. 2 AT 15%F R 1, 2008444 18%6fiK 4T, 2009444 20%6fH
FHAT, 20104FH 2206Fi RH AT, 20114F 1 24%6Fi AT, 20124F4: 25960 K HAT . ANHAT
PR SATIE T 25 FIR I BRI, 20124 (K T A BURL Rk 25% (20114 /% : 24%).
AT ATAE R Ed i LR EOR

BB

AARATENVFIBLR y 5%,

oA BT

IR T G R A% e LA 4 1) 79N o

HH PNz g B 411 3%l .

F 4 R IM2012]105 SO, AHRATERIEEAT H 20114 1 H 1 H R3S brggah s BB A
1) 2% T 0E B o

A 20114 12 A 21 HAERWEBURF B & 1) (G T-ENR AL T 7 2805 M InTE e 45 3 Ik
A, db3TE 20124F 1 A 1 HiEMEW 2% 7 806 B
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7. AFICRRARA TN

T80 RARA T8 HE 26 <
TR SRR AT 1) HLA

AR FHIEL
PNCMI b PNCMI Vv

398,082,992.29  481,315,453.90
607,734,141.62 47,390,624.27

1,005,817,133.91 528,706,078.17

Frak R s BN RARAT IR e 80 . R[4 (2007)134%5] (rPE A RAUTC T
I INCAFIUER S IEAY), M 20074F 5 J1 15 Hid, SRhUsMNCAERHE& &%
BN 5%, ARATHNEN GG AFFAE S BAZ IR EA RAF SR H REU 5% r. HMTAraitEs
SRR M N RAATIE, 201247 12 J] 31 HFI 20114F 12 J] 31 H AR Mif£ak
HER B AIAE L5300 18.0%F11 19.0% N B iV 45 A7 3k % AR FU R % A SAF K BHH &

WO ALY AT

8. AFMFENVEKI

A7 85 Y R
eai e NN

it
e WA 4
T

9.  JriliTEE

PRI P R

AR FHIEL

Ao VNIV

13,138,035.26  307,891,873.44
434,622,046.35 63,189,641.25

447,760,081.61 371,081,514.69

2,174,783.00 405,200.00

445,585,298.61 370,676,314.69

AR FHIEL
PNCMI b PNCMI

288,761,013.35 2,196,956,700.00
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10. A HtEemhv

F

Horpre BUNGZR JORAT 25
<SRBI 77
Aike

it

AR, AHRAT I 52 i m (0 <z

EARK TEHIE

VNIV AR

377,868,776.00
1,309,407,036.00 1,142,680,975.00
235,007,650.00

1,309,407,036.00 1,755,557,401.00

BE (T 20)5 R AZ By P b B 7 T N RS

400,000,000C(20114F: AR 1,130,300,0000) 2552 W (0] s 35 20 iU 3801 14

HWEI.

11, NISCRLE
(WL 5057w

IR
A
ZS VA IEIE -/

TR

LR

I REA I,
- AFIRAT B AN
- P B
- RIBGTHANRK
- R

it

AR FHIEL
PNCMI b PNCMI b

33,172,065.33  25,013,920.47
202,984,130.93  226,040,893.56
(209,498,327.31) (217,882,748.70)

26,657,868.95 33,172,065.33

ALK FAIER
ARG ARG
338,274.53 645,753.39

5,377,502.41 3,668,166.40
4,599,071.27 8,630,547.00
16,343,020.74 20,227,598.54

26,657,868.95 33,172,065.33
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12, RIBGEHCRERGK

(AL A ATAS N oA B F -

(AN C TN

it

il DTIAURMER

e i 11

(HEAT My A 5 DL R 5 o A% N

Fralb gy A

R
R

L R
RS
SRR 25 55l
it

W ORISR
I

AL FAIE
ARG ARG
594,282,500.00  735,498,496.00

594,282,500.00

735,498,496.00

5,942,825.00 7,354,984.96

588,339,675.00

728,143,511.04

(YA H N b 4 i 50

b [X 93 A

e X
eI X
IR M X

#it
W PRI
KT

EAREL L5 (%
PNENIEbTv
94,282,500.00 15.86
200,000,000.00 33.65
100,000,000.00 16.83
100,000,000.00 16.83
100,000,000.00 16.83
594,282,500.00 100.00
5,942,825.00
588,339,675.00
EAREL L5 (%
PNENIEPTv
494,282,500.00 83.17
100,000,000.00 16.83
594,282,500.00 100.00

5,942,825.00

588,339,675.00
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ERIEL L l(%
YNENI P
185,498,496.00 25.22
200,000,000.00 27.19
100,000,000.00 13.60
250,000,000.00 33.99
735,498,496.00 100.00
7,354,984.96
728,143,511.04
ERIEL L l(%
YNENI P
644,513,500.00 87.63
90,984,996.00 12.37
735,498,496.00 100.00

7,354,984.96

728,143,511.04
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12.

13.

14.

FIIGEHMEGK —

(A AR ORTT A E DL -

EARKL GRIES

LAELL 1% 54 L4ELLA 1E 54

(1 14F) (£ 54F) S4ELLE it (E14F) (£ 54F) 54ELLE &t

AR AR YNENibH AR INEIiPH INEIiPH YNEIiPH ARTTIE
fEHTER 300,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 ,0800000.00 200,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
FERDEK - - - 50,000,000.00 - 50,000,000.00
FHARA K 94,282,500.00 94,282,500.00 185,498,496.00 185,498,496.00
b FAPEERK 94,282,500.00 94,282,500.00 185,498,496.00 185,498,496.00
&it 394,282,500.00 200,000,000.00 594,282,500.00 53598,496.00 200,000,000.00 735,498,496.00

W SRR

IS IEHEES

BB b

A AR S

5,942,825.00

588,339,675.00

7,354,984.96

728,143,511.04

P J 5

VNI

18,852,614.00

AARAT IO BEGENE s 3000 B SR it 3R SR 2 SR A% S, 28 Se (2 LA B i 4 D ik
e, IFHLRFE D I R BOR O A AE AR 22 S A HH b SR 4 . ANRAT I B DR I s = 2y

AT

i

=

SEGE

Je e
T
AEERG N

FARE

s
FHIEL
AT SR

FARKL

Ei
I
FARE

84

AW

VNIV

15,782,365.31
793,507.12

16,575,872.43

9,300,707.51
2,842,379.38

12,143,086.89

6,481,657.80

4,432,785.54
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15.

16.

B

Js e
FHIEL
A BT
FARE

A
T
AT SR
FAREL

Ei
T
FARE

s 4 P A BB 7 A3 S BT A5 1 £

(1) LB K3 A P AR 58 7 AN S BT A58 9765

KIYINR S5 -9 B3 Tt
TR W BIEA 2t 22 57
R et WA NN I W v R
ARSI TR

il

BEEE DS ™ 8 Se i A2 5)
B IRALIE %

il

Bt
PNCMI Vv

11,237,266.65
1,140,760.00

12,378,026.65

5,778,887.03
2,379,686.96
8,158,573.99
5,458,379.62
4,219,452.66
LRI 2 i JE AL
AR I FEARKL I
ARG ARG ARG ARG
4,315,872.53 2,913,822.30 1,078,968.13 728,855
4,079,286.97 2,889,443.47 1,019,821.74 722,360.87
9,958,594.70 4,940,989.70 2,489,648.68 1,235,247.4
- 3,150,450.00 - 787,612.50
18,353,754.20 13,894,705.47 4,588,438.55 3,4B338
7 £ I 1 7 S s J0E JIT A B A1 45
EAKL ik EAKL EHIEL
AR TIE NP AR MIE NP
18,852,614.00 18,852,614.00 4,713,153.50 4,71%053
675,114.14 21,504,267.00 168,778.54 5,376,066.75
19,527,728.14 40,356,881.00 4,881,932.04 10,0882
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16.

17.

MBI T A3 B 7 R SE T AR A o - 2
(2)  AHATHIIGLIE PP BT 5 IE Pr AR TREAT TN, USRS
FE AR 7~ R J0E T #5007 328 S i 13 B 4 £

i JiE T AR 5E
3 4 T A3 Bt 4ot

i

AR
PNCMI VT

4,588,438.55
4,881,932.04

FHIEL
PNCMI b

3,473,676.38

10,089,220.25

(293,493.49)

(6,615,543.87)

()  HMANL S BIE 20084 1 H 1 HAZSE. A4 [ A& [2007]395 ([ 55 ok 151
Jite AV T 5B e YA BB SR R AN ), Al B IR BAGIE . AT BRI B AT Bk
TR SO e 32 (AL BT S B BBOR, $DL R IMEseil J%: B 20084F 1 H
1 Hild, JR 2 BRI B BOR A, FEFBUEIAT 5 5 F WD I Bk e BlE .
Hodr: 2 T8 15%E % K14, 20084F 4% 18%i %47, 20094E1% 209%6f1
FPAT, 20104-4% 22960 K AT, 20114E4% 24%FLE AT, 20124FE4% 25%F1 K
1To AT RBE T 22 LR R BBUR A, 201241 T3 BB R N 25%
(20114F: 24%). AHATILR T AESZ BRI FEILEEUR

\|
Vi
—_
=
=

B

7 H DR IE 2

AKX

KIYIRr 9] (1)
oS 70 2

W K 58 e K (2)
FoAt

it
e SO
W

AR
PNCMI VT

1,208,576.67
1,439,664.93
250,008.81
6,134,856.68
21,916,423.42
397,409.33

FHIEL
PNCMI VT

1,208,576.67
898,716.02
907,117.00
4,112,369.97

17,589,187.79
236,673.79

31,346,939.84

24,952,641.24

37,712.99

60,100.00

31,309,226.85

24,892,541.24
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17, HAlgH™ -
(D KIRr S

L[] 5 B8 7 24

5 fE
A AR

ST
FHIEL
AT SR
FARE

Ei
I
FARE

PNCMI b

12,853,916.48

11,946,799.48
657,108.19

12,603,907.67

907,117.00

250,008.81

(A I B8 EC S AR AR TR N VB 1 R 58 LIS B R G S

18. (Rl B A < LR A TG I

U ASIENI 252N

19. H{AHSE

PRAEL N AL
PRABLHR

it

FHIEL

AR
Ao

VNIV

201,478,412.47 476,982,076.68

FAHIE

EARK
Ao

VNI

30,000,000.00

160,280,250.00  135,469,350.00

160,280,250.00 165,469,350.00
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20.

21.

22.

S [P < 7 K

FEHRTHR ) T 1) X
TEARE TEHIEL
AR Mt ARt
55 392,000,000.00 1,080,300,000.00
W KA 7K
TEARE TEHIEL
AN Mt ANt
AR
NCIE-9S 58,500,652.82 71,137,152.01
MNE S 8,534.51 106,031.63
€ JAAF K
NG9S 1,525,328,425.27 2,523,983,496.85
MNE S 4,250,214.81 4,903,090.80
&l 1,588,087,827.41 2,600,129,771.29
AT HR T 357 T
SERIEL AAETR AAE AT EARB
AR Mt AR Mt AR Mt ANR Mt
T Ka. FENFIRM 3,920,774.70 28,493,222.29  (27,784,309.18) 4,608
BT AR A2 (1) 1,759,114.33 1,143,056.17 (682,036.43) 2 720,07
FLos RIS 2 55,109.19 1,598,208.00 (1,266,191.60) 387,125.59
155 ARG - 658,403.00 (658,403.00)
NI R 57 B R 4 T IR A= - 874,297.00 (874,297.00)
&t 5,734,998.22  32,767,186.46  (31,265,237.21) 7.236,947.47

1) KRS

B A2 E 20 i BURFHLRY B L I DAL S ORBE AR RS, AERAT RO 55 8087 1 HIRAKS

BHRM SR ¥ e ah vl o ANRATH IR 53 T T AR T B8 8% (i ey AL B AN

10,000/) I FE A R W e A AT DR AT K. H 20124F 1 H 1 Hi, %k 553 10

R L, AT R 01 TREA T 12% @ i AN B AR 12,0000]) JF%

FERZRFEMA B A DAL T o AT N AT £ b1 TR AR BB AR [ HSAT, %K

IR 55 vt R A A AT B LA LG TR SS 00 TA 1) B N R, IR 1Y 20915 %2 100%,
88

-29-



JEE AR PR [ AR AT (b ) A PR 7]

22, NATHRT M - &

(1) KRS - 48

AGRAT T3 TR HO IR YR 55 e v 2 ¥ 52 i S5 AT RS S0P AL, e 2 ot
SCS5 (R ILAR LA S A R 1 24 S R 55 A A 25 1 55 AR P A P T B A AR T

(&) B IBERH, RSN PR B B A

TEAREL EXIEL
P = 3.5% 3.3%
BT E K R 7.0% 7.0%
BEE 32t v I AR 3.0% 3.5%

SERBAFERIEL

B L ) th [ 20024E-20034F 4 %
S EL A 15%
IBIRAERE

(b) TR ANMYSS B BB (1 ¥ e B2 2 v it

NG S E B
ANRTJT AR
IR S5 A 1,634,900.63 740,927.38
BERE 52 i 55 A B 5% H 54,000.00 24,680.56
&1t 1,688,900.63 765,607.94
(€) TN PASHR T35 1) % 5 52 2 v kI 55 BT = A B A T
TEARE TEHIEL
AR FC NG
ARVEN B4 B8 52 1 45 I EAE 2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
EUE N G 13 8 52 7 A5 I EE - -
2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
IR 2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
BERE 32 1 A5 77 AR 1 Aot 14 i 2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30

89

-30 -



JEE AR PR [ AR AT (b ) A PR 7]

22.

23.

RATIPUTH - 2k

(1) KRS - 48

(d) e 32 an A5 I BUEAR S Wb .

FHIEL

2 IR 55 A
HE
EGAGEREZES
C A AR A
NI )

AR

A b T A3
=RV
NG
oAt

it

AR
PNCMI Vv

1,759,114.30
1,634,900.63
54,000.00
(545,844.46)
(557,865.90)
(124,170.50)

FHIEL
PNCMI b

822,855.03
740,927.38
24,680.56
346,844.46
(176,193.13)

2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
AR FYIEL
ARG ARG
1,124,110.98 5,400,297.23
2,357,545.39 5,580,399.96
26,022.89 36,320.94
351,224.01 129,934.56
3,858,903.27  11,146,952.69
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24. NATHE

(LA HN7R

FHIRW
AT
AL

FARRHN

Lt 7R

A
- WAE K
- R B FEA < Rl LA A7 50K
- AT
- S R R K

it

25.  HAth 415

AF N PRUEE:
i i Hl

i S 2
FAt NEATR (1)

it

(1) HAt A K

Wt R 587 A K
WA IR IR LR A QIR It
HAtk

it

91

AR
PNCMI b

16,969,678.60

137,575,468.99

FAIE
ARG
7,204,459.50

148,618,288.80

(138,647,580.45) (138,853,069.70)

15,897,567.14

16,969,678.60

EARE
Ao

6,934,447.85
5,974,685.77
2,7137,768.32

250,665.20

FEHIH
Ao

9,784,665.71
4,325,709.82
2,292,438.96

566,864.11

15,897,567.14

16,969,678.60

TEARK
Ao

301,742.88
1,856,055.05
258,750.05
15,992,216.93

FEHIEL
VNI

301,742.88
2,351,586.79
1,556,909.61

16,939,974.89

18,408,764.91

21,150,214.17

AR
PNCMI N

13,862,507.64

2,129,709.29

FAIE
ARG
11,466,965.76

3,180,400.44
2,292,608.69

15,992,216.93

16,939,974.89

-32-



JEE AR PR [ AR AT (b ) A PR 7]

26. SRR

REATHEM A AR T 1,000,000,000.00G, # 4% 20124 12 A 31 H 4347, #
FAEARRAT R IE I A BN

TERBAFEHIEL
VEM T L A5 a Nt
%
JEERE PR B AT R A A AR 67% 666,000,000.00
N 33% 334,000,000.00

1,000,000,000.00

RN BARCLE) ARG A S TR 25 A FRAT I S 2 50 E, I H T %54 (2002)
THAEEREG 72 5 F1(2007)HAE LR 11 556 B4R 2

27. BN/

TEARE EIEL
AR B ANRFIC
TEH] AN 44,966,409.60  39,503,162.77
AT 5,103,187.80 5,463,246.83
R KK 50,069,597.40  44,966,409.60

28. HALNH

EREL GRIET
ARmMt ANRmMt
AR (260,133.36) -
AT 409,383.36 (260,133.36)
BT 2t RN 2R SR EL A, 545,844.46 (346,844.46)
18 90T P 5B ) (136,461.10) 86,711.10
TR R 149,250.00 (260,133.36)
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29. RS HE

TR
AT (5 0]

TR

30.  ARAHCHE

IRy BEAE
AL

R A TA(L)

S M AR 1E A (2)

FEARR Sy BEA

(PRI A AR

IR AT Tl AT B 20074 TF 4% 109%84 5 I TF 4
SHEBITA RS 1L,

()P M AR HE

AR
VNCMI b

33,316,907.91
(12,838,907.91)

FAIEL
NIV
21,077,745.89
12,239,162.02

20,478,000.00

33,316,907.91

AR
PNCMI Vv

206,375,493.22
51,031,877.98
(5,103,187.80)
12,838,907.91

FHIEL

PNCMI b

169,445,433.79

54,632,468.28
(5,463,246.83)

(12,239,162.02)

265,143,091.31

206,375,493.22

BRAM, HEHES

MRE I B 20124 3 H 30 HAA 1 (iAol & e vH 3 e BIMEA) (1 4:[2012]205)
FANRIGE IRER, AT A 2012 SFETFARHL AR I MR 557 TH 5 1.5%0F 04— B E

Fro
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31. AR

FEBON
AR
AT T
R 4
RS e
SRR

it

A
- M A LR 7 TR
BTN T
S e i = 2k
kA7

it

BN

32. TG EMEARA

BRI ON

ZAEVEHK

AR DT HE B
BB
ST
S EAE A R
LR BN
-HoAl

Nif

TN G 1
LSRR
YT i
Sl T

IS

TELRR LAl

AE R
PNCMI b

5,227,853.23
9,618,115.55
46,339,417.53
102,625,506.43
39,173,238.19

A 2L
PNCMI b

1,331,403.14
16,365,473.37
41,253,535.12
127,145,473.71
39,945,008.22

202,984,130.93

226,040,893.56

18,189,011.75

5,622,253.62
41,347,634.33
72,416,569.29

7,358,118.23
14,349,153.10
42,730,286.45
84,180,731.02

137,575,468.99

148,618,288.80

65,408,661.94

77,422,604.76

AFEZIH
Ao

1,360,000.00
13,334,828.15
72,618,826.35
7,843.65
2,437.02
1,416,217.25
63,607.33

A 2L
Ao

1,850,000.00

8,043,741.52

79,479,248.09
23,783.82
224,699.43
97,148.96
67,108.33

88,803,759.75

89,785,730.15

- 1,687,034.57
2,278,975.50 1,187,507.18
2,223,241.81 1,962,110.85
4,502,217.31 4,836,652.60

84,301,542.44

84,949,077.55
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33.

34.

35.

36.

Pt s/ (1912K)

A H VRl B L2/ (B2 2K)

SRS 2R/ (H1R)

Ao V<R Bt

B b

it

LRINE N

BeBEE by > H A A R

BV 2

=R
B A

it

AEZIH
PNCMI b

4,380,830.00

A 2L
PNCMI Vv

(28,154,695.62)

AN R
VNI

(5,017,605.00)

ARMIE

42,455,570.30
(636,173.00)

(5,017,605.00)

41,819,397.30

AAE 2t LAE S
NIV ARG
1,242,174.87 1,206,971.52

AAE 2t LAE R
NIV ARG

10,120,372.99
1,384,988.38

12,848,086.25
1,726,072.36

11,505,361.37

14,574,158.61
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37.

38.

39.

HRUT 3557 T S A
P RLK 3%
IR 2 T P
ML A 1a i ol
PrIH % H
T8 7 P
ZENR
IR TT M4 3
MUK R 2

Mk 25 Hi4 B
Bl

HoAth

it

B IRAEL 153 %

DU IRAERTR
A7 TR M TIRAE 5 %
VLGSV RIER PN

it

AFE R
VNCMI b

33,596,485.84
7,010,850.73
657,108.19
4,800,417.02
2,842,379.38
2,379,686.96
2,175,677.52
1,200,000.00
726,490.16
339,420.99
225,530.70
5,393,161.69

A 2L

PNCMI b

32,542,360.97
6,223,675.00
3,946,478.97
5,296,101.66
2,980,382.43
1,889,004.80
1,631,423.29
1,200,000.00
699,846.34
357,140.02
179,265.59
5,038,987.52

61,347,209.18

61,984,666.59

A R AR
AR Mot AR Mt
(1,409,604.96)  7,354,984.96
1,767,874.20 405,200.00
(22,387.01) 60,100.00
335,882.23  7,820,284.96

AATHOE 201240, DERIRE AN 1%; i PARIT EARITR, REB ARG .

ERIZLIUN

ARINAAEBL K T2 9% iR ik

[ 5 B3 Ak BN
HAtk

it

7/

AAE 2t LAE S
ARG ARG
185,224.48 318,386.67
- 11,458.49
15.73 67.94
185,240.21 329,913.10
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40.

41.

EOVAN S

Tl < B <ty 49 <
[ 5 5% 7 A A R
oAt

it

P B2

ST
i JiE T AR 9%
A 4 P A A 1
Horp AP APTEBL3E

it

PSR 5 S v A R 5 R0

ESamilbE

FLERIF DA TRUR 26%0H 5 (1 Fr A3 B 2 HI (AR 24%)

AR I B
TR R AL B 5
I3 SEHUR B X R 22 5 T 4
AN A TR 2
RN R AL

P B2

97

A ST AR
AR Mot AR Mot
250,023.49 783.59
- 39,048.28
80,362.21 0.25
330,385.70 39,832.12
AAE S AR
AR Mt AR Mot
21,965,302.19  6,643,548.78
(6,458,511.48) 10,857,694.33
(67,475.80) 5,220.51
(67,475.80) 5,220.51

15,439,314.91

17,506,463.62

AR R
Ao

66,471,192.89
16,617,798.22
304,815.17

(67,475.80)
(1,415,822.68)

EAE R
VNI

72,138,931.90
17,313,343.66
303,395.92
92,651.73
61,001.98
5,220.51
(269,150.18)

15,439,314.91

17,506,463.62
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42, HAthZrs s
NGRS AE BT
AR Mt ARt
WOE 32t H I 2R SR8 (453 2K) 545,844.46 (346,844.46)
1 90T P 5B ) (136,461.10) 86,711.10
arn 409,383.36 (260,133.36)
43.  WENINEENY
AR SERIEL
NG AR T
A7 S ERAT 1,005,817,133.91 528,706,078.17
FEAE eSS & (398,082,992.29) (481,315,453.90)
JAFAH A=A HPAWN
e CINIZ e 447,760,081.61 371,081,514.69
PRIk I - 1,957,522,500.00
&t 1,055,494,223.23 2,375,994,638.96
44,  BlEmERA IR
AAE B A
AR Mt AR Mt
BRI R O LB S A LA T
R 51,031,877.98 54,632,468.28
e BEIRAERE T 335,882.23 7,820,284.96
li] 52 % =4 1H 2,842,379.38 2,980,382.43
TCTE B 5= P4 2,379,686.96 1,889,004.80
A A 9l FH P 657,108.19 3,946,478.97
A E ] T A R - 27,589.79
BRI (HR) (4,380,830.00) 28,154,695.62
g BRI (102,625,506.43)  (127,145,473.71)
A SOOHEA S 5,017,605.00 (41,819,397.30)

(6,322,050.38)
172,273,800.02
(1,988,926,826.05)

3 JIE TSR S Aot R 8 (2 )
27 PN R (45 1)
L7 PRSI (R85 T/ (i)

10,857,694.33
(386,887,652.58)
872,966,406.06

RN P L R (1,867,716,873.10)

427,422,481.65

Dl KA P It o
Pl KIS VIR AR
ke DI I AN WK TR

1,055,494,223.23
2,375,994,638.96

2,375,994,638.96
1,060,423,815.99

IR A S B4 S5 O 4 44 18 o it (1,320,500,415.73)

1,315,570,822.97
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45,

pistiEires)

MRYEAHRAT (1 N AL 45

oy BEOR S A BRI T E, AT I 2Bk 25 Rl 70 D BAR i

T, IR LR I DAASRAT I8 M o SEA A 52 K)o AHRAT 1078 BEZ 8 PP i ix L

T I E R, LAYRE [ 23 e B A P ol S5

I B A SRR 25 20 78 1o B AR A N R R 2 T BOR S R R At R, X Lot il
L5 G ) W 55 4 IR B 2 TF O B o R Ry — 2

%%E?&%/fg/%\:

ERIZITN

GIESSELION

B Rt U AIDSRE TN
T AN

BN LTV ANE I

RS E
EME A (77 $5)

HhTefE R

I IH AR 2

BEANE S

Forbe DR E B S
MBI e

AAE ETH

FA

PNCMI b

BT

97,348,213.16
28,538,481.61
(70,057,071.69)
78,730,666.34
(9,920,934.79)

AEstor 4T

42,456,578.00
36,870,180.33
70,057,071.69
5,570,876.10
15,521.57

28,833,238.22

44,355,214.56

il cs]

frit

139,804,791.16
65,408,661.94
84,301,542.44
(9,905,413.22)

68,514,974.94

(1,898,636.56)

73,188,452.78

2,901,497,737.87

1,018,029,726.57

66,616,338.38

196,145,359.57,7233382,104.87

1,509,738,550.14

973,948,975.59

96,145,359.57

7532,166.16

4,472,630.04
1,718,574.95

577,814.95
1,140,760.00
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1,406,544.49
215,692.17
215,692.17

5,879,174.53
1,934,267.12

793,507.12
1,140,760.00
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45,

oy - &

AR

BAT

B| S0 iz
22,319,719.37
22,080,008.28
51,092,507.38
212,308.55
27,402.54

it

156,227,961.08
77,422,604.76

84,949,077.55
(6,143,721.23)

41,382,700.25

AN 133,908,241.71
ZAPSRES PN 55,342,596.48
Hope A3 (51,092,507.38)
Fo90 LSRN 84,736,769.00
H AN 15 (6,171,123.77)
S 42,996,409.91
DL (7 ) 90,911,831.80

84,379,110.16

(19,062,980.88)

5,377,537,475.86

71,848,850.92

2,135,412,719.49

(1,844,052,832.4 5,668,897,262.89

2,086,548,925.30

I3 R AT S A 4,035,387,048.82

AR

7 1H R85 2% H 4,804,472.91

PEARPES 3,991,660.46

Horpe DR ] 5 e S 1,513,757.63
U e L AA A % = 327,211.73
AN WA g 2,150,691.10

(L% i B 253 3 (K16 AR AZ BN

Aol 55X
oK E A iRk g5
FoAt

it

(UL NSRRI 73 (K135 SR AZ TN

KU T A R AT N
SRS FA & X RS A SN

it

(3% 03 7 P AE K 7 (K AR L B B 7

AARAT I ARG B BE ™ AL BTN o

100

(1,744,0524832. 4,377,883,041.66

4,011,393.29
80,599.00
80,599.00

AN R
PNCMI VT

89,645,226.20
41,029,231.38
15,641,164.58

8,815,866.20
4,072,259.46
1,594,356.63
327,211.73
2,150,691.10

P 2L
PNCMI b

123,185,812.02
35,255,885.47
(2,213,736.41)

146,315,622.16

156,227,961.08

AEZIH
PNCMI b

70,718,004.75
75,597,617.41

A 2L
PNCMI

79,078,538.07
77,149,423.01

146,315,622.16

156,227,961.08
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45.

46.

orEIR - B

(4R 5 B RO L
AARATXARIRI T & A AE TR R
I IR AT Ty LA SEBRAL Gy ks A FEali vt 70 PSSO 23 5 2l 42 4870 B FR S BN
AN A E -

RIKTT R AR MIAL

(Ve RO PENINPN 7]

B2 TE W N R eI HEMTA  FERARAT ]
JEEAR -+ 1)
[ B AT PR 2 ] e [ LRSS PE8%790,000,000.00  100%

AHRAT B A5 EE AR - P30 B B AR AT A PR ) 200 26F 55 Y I 8 A M R i LU e 28 1k, ANARAT
£ A 2Bk \) i Morgan Stanley

(Y S AT K AEA G BAAFAELE IO AR K HA ORI 7

B T A RIKTT KA
JEEAR =PI A R 2 7] Hh [ 7 7 EESIZi RN
JEEAR L PR 7 e 2% S (b ) A BR 22 W) B EIE SRR/
JEEAR L PR B i) (B 50) AT B 2 ] HE 5T EIE SRR/
JEAR L PP B R () AT R ] HE i B SRR/
PERRE PR R S (P ) A PR 2 ) i EESIZi R/
PR P BRI 55 (i) A R ) i EESIZi RN
JEEAR PR B B L i) () 7 B 2 ] i EESIZi /A
JEEAR P IR i 55 5 i (i) A B HE i EIESEIR RN
JEAR PP R AR ER L BEAT IR W I % [F) 4R H F RS
INPRE/AT
=EE AR HIARAT (P ) A R 7] i x5 AT KR
INEs e E AR /A

AARAT I IS WAEA AT I BN 51 b HOR AR S UK 5 1 5% B R AR D) M X
JE ol D 42 T B[R] 2 B A HA 22 =) o AR T HORRIRAS Z #AT B S 3, X
RIRAT Ty BEAT 5 T 9%

101
-42 -



JEE AR PR [ AR AT (b ) A PR 7]

RKTRAR LMLy - B

AT 5 RIS AEASE ) A 2B T U0 BRI 5

RN

= EE A HIRARAT
(h E)ATBR 2 ]

FLESZ

FERR T3 F

B AR ATAT IR A W
PERR A LA B IR 5%

P () A7 BR 24 ]
ZEE AR HIBARAT

(h E) AT PR 2 ]

it

TR SN

FERR T3 F
WP HHAT R 2 7]
JEERR )3 A 1 5
() A7 BR 2 ]
JEERR 3R 1 5%
B LA R A ]
JERR LRI g At
BT PR 2 ]
PERR A B BR
(L) AT PR 2 ]
JEERR )R B8 e )
(B0 A PR 2 ]
JEERR L3 B
55 (L) A7 R 22 7
JEERR L5 B8 i )
()T PR 2 ]

it

AAE B A S0
S LL 151 (%) S Lk 151 (%)
ARt ARt
306,321.28 0.15 17,852.53 0.01
AAE B AE B
gt 1 EL 151 (%) Kk RICH)]
ARt ARt
4,525,737.46 3.29 1,253,154.06 0.84
51,003.94 0.04 246,510.17 0.17
- 607,797.22 0.41
4,576,741.40 3.33 2,107,461.45 1.42
AAE B AE B
gt 1 EL 151 (%) Kk RICH)]
ARt AR Tt
72,618,826.35 81.77 79,479,248.09 88.52
1,250,000.00 1.41 1,250,000.00 1.39
100,000.00 0.11 100,000.00 0.11
5,000.00 0.01 30,000.00 0.03
2,500.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.06
2,500.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.03
325,000.00 0.36
- 65,000.00 0.07
73,978,826.35 83.30 81,329,248.09 90.58
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46.

VAT 5 RIBTTAEAF A A T U0 N EARIKAS Sy - &8

TG e

=2 HIBARAT
(H E) AT PR 2 ]

b 55 ]

JEEAR TR B AR 55
(B AT PR 2 ]

(8) RIKAZ Iy R 45 50
PR 58 &

I A HIRARAT
(H E)ATBR 2 ]

R

=EE A HIRARAT
(H E)AT B2 ]

PR B4

JEEAR A PLR)

AE R AR
Kl EE151 (%) &0 EL451 (%)
VNI Ao
2,278,975.50 50.62 1,187,507.18 24.55
AR R A A R
A EL451] (%) A ELf51](%)
AR VNI
1,200,000.00 1.96 1,200,000.00 1.94
AARATAE H 55 TR 4% — A ML A5k 5 RO T4 5
EARAL FHIEL
B EL151] (%) & EL£511(%)
Ao VNI
126,018,000.00 5.74
EARRL FHIEL
S ELA51 (%) B EE451](%)
Ao Ao
17,852.53 0.05
EARAL FHIEL
A EE£51(%0) et | EL 51 (%)
Ao Ao
160,280,250.00 100.00 135,469,350.00 81.87

BrRERAT A PR ]
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46, KEITRRMMA) - 4

() RIRAE ) REE SR - 4

WS KA 2K
FEARE EHIEL
KRl L 151 (%) il EL 51 (%)
AR M AR M
JEE AR = PFR) B 77 e 4%

H (b DA R A A 17,681,425.34 1.11 36,571,358.59 1.41
HoAth 24,982.33 0.00 4,533.69 0.00
it 17,706,407.67 1.11 36,575,892.28 1.41
AT R

FERE SEH I
S0 EL 151 (%) S EL151 (%)
AR Mt AR Mt
PERE L P1 R

[ B4R AT B2 ] 2,737,768.32 17.22 1,194,163.96 7.04
PEERR R P iR 45

) ED)E R A A 1,841.59 0.01 8,126.96 0.05
HAth 2.67 0.00 - -
&t 2,739,612.58 17.23 1,202,290.92 7.09
HoAth %5 7~

FERE SEH L
S0 EL 151 (%) S L1511 (%)
AR Mt AR Mt
PERE L P1 R

WP PR 6,134,856.68 19.59 4,107,836.53 16.50
PERE L P1 R

[ AR AT A B2 ] 351,218.40 1.12 119,396.57 0.48
&l 6,486,075.08 20.71 4,227,233.10 16.98
HoAth A7 45

FERE SEH L
S EL 151 (%) S L5 (%)
AR Mt AR Mt
PERR PR R 5%

(B HE IR A A 571,739.01 3.11 200,000.00 0.95
PERE L1

AN PR 2+ 3,180,400.44 15.04
&t 571,739.01 3.11 3,380,400.44 15.98

104

- 45 -



JEE AR PR [ AR AT (b ) A PR 7]

46.

47.

48.

49.

RIKTT R AR MIAL

OES F=ZINEE L

B PN S AR I

RBEE BN DHRAT ORI 1500

RAHMITH

TR
BUIR

ZFE 55

BACAF K

ZTALHTK

WATEALH

- 4E

&

A R H A R

Kl EE151 (%) Kl EL451 (%)
VNI VNI

8,330,907.08 24.80 5,611,313.60 17.24
(N7 N EC M KT AR PN

TEARK T

VNN VNN
3,720,400.00

13,660,486.65

193,190,400.00

EARE
I ARG

164,000,000.00

FHIEL
Ira ARG
483,000,000.00

164,000,000.00

483,000,000.00
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28,538,481.61

55,342,596.48

167,517,956.48

48,763.05
68,922,403.18
70,105,834.74

78,730,666.34

204,545,000.36

1,567,340.94
98,109,896.50
52,659,848.32

84,736,769.00

83,231,403.15
4,500,736.81

4,380,830.00

(5,017,605.00)
(10,526,334.66)

1,242,174.87

87,994,673.61
3,257,904.61

(28,154,695.62)

41,819,397.30

(21,042,796.97)

1,206,971.52

28,833,238.22

42,996,409.91

9,463,903.89
19,033,452.10
335,882.23

13,308,658.78
21,867,466.17
7,820,284.96

68,514,974.94

90,911,831.80

74,215.73
330,385.70

272,326.51
39,798.53

68,258,804.97

91,144,359.78

12,092,798.74

16,604,401.97

56,166,006.23

74,539,957.81

129,569.58

(46,319.58)

56,295,575.81

74,493,638.23
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350,000,000.00
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201,478,412.47
757,550,023.70
6,613,456.74
556,005.42
6,644,515.25
22,000.00
1,084,562.01

476,981,617.17
1,115,286.13

1,596,468,050.56
4,693,120.34
1,194,175.21
4,981,374.92
(71,271.26)
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973,948,975.59
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100,000,000.00
66,000.00

(55,985,249.02)

100,000,000.00
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(50,851,120.77)

44,080,750.98

48,935,065.45

1,018,029,726.57

2,135,412,719.49
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52,659,848.32
50,508,392.30

48,763.05 1,567,340.94
5,570,876.10 212,308.55
5,572,356.60 1,791,056.54

1,480.50 1,578,747.99

15,521.57 27,402.54

44,355,214.56

41,382,700.25

2,041,457.48
42,313,757.08

1,265,499.83
40,117,200.42

(1,898,636.56)

(19,062,980.88)

111,024.48

57,586.59
33.59

(1,787,612.08)

(19,005,427.88)

3,346,516.17

902,061.65

(5,134,128.25)

(19,907,489.53)

279,813.78

(213,813.78)

(4,854,314.47)

(20,121,303.31)




MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL
(CHINA) LIMITED

Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2012

The financial statements and auditors’ report hateen issued in Chinese. The English translatiorpiepared for your
reference only. If there is any conflict of meaningetween the Chinese and English versions, the @si@version prevails.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (13) No.P
[Translation]

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statésneh Morgan Stanley Bank International
(China) Limited (the "Bank™), which comprise theldozce sheet as at 31 December 2012, and the
income statement, the statement of changes in ¢&svaquity and the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financitdratnts.

1. Management's responsibility for the financiaksinents

Management of the Bank is responsible for the pegjman and fair presentation of financial
statements. This responsibility includes: (1) pramathe financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises ese fair presentation of the financial
statements; (2) designing, implementing and maiirigiinternal control that is necessary to
enable the financial statements that are free fraterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

2. Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢h@sancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with China Statsdan Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with the Code of Ethics for Chin€sstified Public Accountants, and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidiaevidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The proceiselected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of materiastatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assesds) we consider the internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of tharfsial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstarieé not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal cdn#a audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used andelsonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overefigntation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaisesiifficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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3. Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Baresent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 Decembet2(nd the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance withohating Standards for Business Enterprises.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP. Chinese Certiffedblic Accountant
Shanghai, China

18 April 2013
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

ASSETS

Balances with the Central Bank

Due from banks

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Interest receivable

Loans and advances to customers

Investment property

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

TOTALASSETS

130

Notes

10
11
12
13
14
15
17

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

1,005,817,133.91 28,706,078.17
445,585,298.61 370,676,314.69

288,761,013.35 95,056,700.00

1,309,407,0360 1,755,557,401.00
26,657,868.95  33,172,065.33

588,339,675.00 2ZB,143,511.04
18,852,614.00  18,852,614.00
4,432,785.54 6,481,657.80
4,219,452.66 5,458,379.62
31,309,226.85  24,892,541.24

3,723,382,104.87 5,668,897,262.89

(Continued)



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 18 1,208,412.47 476,982,076.68
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 19 160,280,250.00 5469,350.00
Repurchase agreements 20 392,000,000.00 1,080,300M00
Customer deposits 21 1,588,087,827.41 2,600,122971
Employee benefit payable 22 7,236,947.47 5,734,922
Current tax payable 23 3,858,903.27 11,146,952.69
Interest payable 24 15,897,567.14 16,969,678.60
Deferred tax liabilities 16 293,493.49 6,615,543.87
Other liabilities 25 18,408,764.91 21,150,214.17
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,387,542,166.16 4,384,498,585.5
OWNER'S EQUITY
Paid-in capital 26 1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
Surplus reserves 27 50,069,597.40 44,966,409.60
Capital reserves 28 149,250.00 (260,133.36)
General reserves 29 20,478,000.00 33,316,907.91
Retained earnings 30 265,143,091.31 206,375,493.22
TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY 1,335,839,938.71 1,284,398/637
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 3,723,382,1087 5,668,897,262.89

The accompanying notes are part of the financeeéstents.

The financial statements on pages 3 to 60 weresdigy the following:

Head of the Bank Head of Finance Department
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Operating income
Net interest income
Interest income
Interest expenses
Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Investment income/(losses)
Gain/(losses) from changes in fair value
Exchange losses

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating expenses
Impairment loss

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less: Income tax expenses

NET PROFIT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSSEYS)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes

31

31
31

32

32
32

33
34

35

36
37
38

39
40

41

42

The accompanying notes are part of the financaéstents.

2012
RMB

139,804,791.16

2011
RMB

156,227,961.08

65,408,661.94

77,422,608.7

202,984,130.93
137,575,468.99

84,301,542.44

226,040,898.5
148,618,288

§449,077.55

88,803,759.75 889/30.15

4,502,217.31

4,380,830.00

(5,07,605.00)

(10,510,813.09)
1,242,174.87

435,652.60

(28615.62)
41,819,397.30
(21,015,394.43)
1,2065271.

73,188,452.78

84,379,110.16

11,505,361.37
61,347,209.18
335,882.23

14/4,158.61
61,984,666.59
7,820,284.96

66,616,338.38

71,848,850.92

185,240.21
330,385.70

329,913.10
39,83221

66,471,192.89

72,138,931.90

15,439,314.91

1756862

51,031,877.98

54,632,468.28

409,383.36

760,133.36)

51,441,261.34

54,3743




MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Cash flow from operating activities
Net decrease in balances with the Central Badkdare from banks
Net decrease in loans and advances to customers
Net increase in customer deposits,
due to banks and other financial institutions
Interest, fee and commission received
Other cash received relating to operating a@tivit

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating acti\stie

Net increase in balances with the Central Barmkdwre from banks
Net decrease in customer deposits,
due to banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease in placements from banks
and other financial institutions
Net increase in placements with banks and othantial institutions
Net decrease in repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commission paid
Cash paid to and for employees
Tax payments
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating actesti
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments
Investment income received
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activitie

Cash paid to purchase fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid to purchase investments

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing actisti
Net cash flow from investing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvatants

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent

Notes

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginninigeofear 43

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 43

The accompanying notes are part of the financaéstents.

2012
RMB

83,232,461.61

141,215,996.00

188,466,823.2
1,427,415.08

2011
RMB

233,182,504.00

1,118,166,816.72

203,953,313.71
2,705,116.85

414,342,695.81

1,558,007,751.28

1,287,545,608.09

5,189,100.00

49,326,813.35
688,300,00.00

143,149,797.76

31,409,478.45

41,127,759.28
36,011,011.98

448,640,255.94

153,208,880.00
173,207,200.00
131,700,000.00
143,689,722.30
5581464.86
22,281,621.19
26,298,125.34

2,282,059,568.91

1,130,585,269.63

(1,867, BI%3.10)

427,422,481.65

1,576137,800.00
110,890,914.23

2,102,260,729.30
97,691,076.39
63,050.24

1,687,028,714.23

2,200,014,855.93

0eszaz

4,072,259.46

1,135,005,040.(0285,599,170.00

1,136,939,307.12

1,289,671,429.46

550,089,40.11

910,343,426.47

(2,872,949.74)

(22,195,085.15)

(1,320,500,415.73)

1,315,570,822.97

2,375,994,638.96

1,055,494,223.23

1,060,423,815.99
2,375,994,638.96
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNER’S EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012
Paid in capital Surplus reserves General reserves Capital reserves Retained earnings Total owner’s equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 29) (Note 28) (Note 30)
|. Balance asat 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012 1,000,000,000.00 44,966,409.60 33,316,907.91 133036) 206,375,493.22 1,284,398,677.37
I1. Current year movement - 5,103,187.80 (12,838,907.91) 409,383.36 58, @H.(D 51,441,261.34
(1) Net profit - - - 51,031,877.98 51,031,877.98
(I1) Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 409,383.36 - 409,383.36
Subtotal of (1) and (Il) - - 409,383.36 51,031,877.98 51,441,261.34
() Distribution of profit - 5,103,187.80 (12,838,907.91) 7,735,720.11
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - 5,103,187.80 - (5,103,187.80)
2. Appropriation to general reserves - - (12,838,907.91) 12,838,907.91
111. Balance as at 31 December 2012 1,000,000,000.00 50,069,597.40 20,478,000.00 500D 265,143,091.31 1,335,839,938.71
2011
Paid in capital Surplus reserves General reserves  Capital reserves Retained earnings Total owner’s equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 29) (Note 28) (Note 30)

|. Balance asat 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011

. Current year movement -
() Net profit
(I1) Other comprehensive income/(loss) -

1,000,000,000.00
|

39,503,162.77

21,077,745.89

169445,433.79

1,230,026,342.45

Subtotal of (I) and (II) -

(1) Distribution of profit -
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves -
2. Appropriation to general reserves -

111. Balance as at 31 December 2011

5,463,246.83 12,239,162.02 (260,133.36) 36,5M4B 54,372,334.92
- - - 54,632,468.28 54,632,468.28
- - (260,133.36) - (260,133.36)
- (260,133.36) 54,632,468.28 54,372,334.92
5,463,246.83 12,239,162.02 (17,702,408.85)
5,463,246.83 - (5,463,246.83)
- 12,239,162.02 (12,239,162.02)
1,000,000,000.00 44,966,409.60 33,316,907.91 126036) 206,375,493.22 1,284,398,677.37

The accompanying notes are part of the financeeéstents.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

1. GENERAL

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limitede( “Bank”), formerly known as Nan Tung
Bank Ltd., Zhuhai, was approved by the People’'skB#rChina ( “PBOC”) and established on 19
October 1984, with an original operating period26f years, by Nan Tung Investment (Macao)
Limited which is wholly-owned by Bank of China Mac&ranch. The Bank had a registered
capital of RMB 300 million, and obtained its busiadicense on 14 December 1984. The Bank
mainly engaged in a full scope of foreign curreseyvices to foreign entities, foreign invested
companies, foreign representative offices, Hong d<dlacau, Taiwan representative offices in
China, foreigners and Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwanveatiand partial foreign currency services to
non-foreign invested companies.

The Bank increased its registered capital by RMB dfillion to RMB 400 million on 22 August
2002 with the approval of the PBOC. The Bank wagreyed to engage in full-scope foreign
currency business in November 2002.

The Bank renewed its business license (Qi-Du-YuegZdi N0.003414) on 2 September 2004,
the operating period was extended from 14 Decerh®@4 to 14 December 2024.

With the approval from the China Banking Regulat@ymmission ( “CBRC”) on 8 September
2006, Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited SBI”) took over 100% equity interest of
the Bank from Nan Tung Investment (Macao) Limit€de Bank obtained a new business license
(Qi-Du-Yue-Zong-Zi No.003573) after the change lb&ieholder on 21 September 2006, and the
operating period remained the same.

On 2 April 2007, MSBI injected RMB 600 million, tiregistered and paid-in capital of the Bank
increased to RMB 1 billion. With the approval fr@@dBRC, the Bank changed its name to Morgan
Stanley Bank International (China) Limited on 14\We007. On 17 July 2007, with the approval
from CBRC, the Bank was approved to engage in Redinidollars (“RMB”) business provided
to customers other than Chinese citizens withintehetory of China and obtained a new business
license (register no. 440000400000859) on 19 Jo072As of 31 December 2007, the registered
capital of the Bank is RMB 1 billion, the capitalrfRMB business is RMB 250 million and for
foreign currency business is Hong Kong Dollars (‘Bi%equivalent of RMB 750 million.

In June 2008, with the approval from State Admmaisbn of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE”), the
Bank converted HKD281,477,395.13 capital for fore@urrency business to RMB 250 million
capital for RMB business. As of 31 December 2008, total registered capital of the Bank is
RMB 1 billion, including RMB 500 million for RMB bsiness and HKD equivalent of RMB 500
million for foreign currency business.

In January 2010, with the approval from SAFE, tlenB converted HKD167,803,891.84 capital
for foreign currency business to RMB 166 milliorpital for RMB business. As of 31 December
2012, the total registered capital of the Bank MBR1 billion, including RMB 666 million for
RMB business and HKD equivalent of RMB 334 millitam foreign currency business. Details of
capital contribution by the investor are describedote 26.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

1.

GENERAL - continued

The Bank was approved by CBRC on 10 June 2009t#éblesh a branch in Beijing and obtained
a branch business licence on 24 June 2009, withatpg period from 24 June 2009 to 14
December 2024.

The registered address of the Bank is Room 280%-28@ Room 2816, 28/F, Yuecai Building
No0.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong,|l®sdtepublic of China (“PRC”). The Bank
is formed as a limited liability company.

The Bank is permitted to provide the following sSeeg to any customers for foreign currency
business and to customers except for China citizetise territory of China for RMB business:
accept public deposits; providing short-term, meditand long-term loans; undertaking
acceptance and discounting of negotiable instruspgnirchasing and selling government bonds,
financial bonds, and other foreign currency semsiexcept for shares; providing letters of credit
(L/C) service and guarantee; conducting domestid #ternational settlements; buying and
selling foreign currency for its own accounts oraagents; inter-bank borrowing and lending;
providing bank card service; providing safety batvece; providing credit investigation and
consultancy service; and other businesses apptoy&BRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank has adopted the Accounting StandardsdsmBss Enterprises issued by the Ministry
of Finance on 15 February 2006 (hereinafter refetoeas "new CASs").

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARS FOR BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES

The financial statements of the Bank have beengpeebin accordance with new CASs, and
present truly and completely, the Bank's finanpiition as of 31 December 2012, and results of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESMMATES

The following significant accounting policies andcaunting estimates are determined in
accordance with the new CASs.

Accounting year

The Bank has adopted the calendar year as its mieguyear, i.e. from 1 January to 31
December.

Functional currency

The Bank's functional currency is RMB, the currentyhe primary economic environment in
which the Bank operates. The reporting currendyeffinancial statements is RMB.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The Bank has adopted the accrual basis of accauriExcept for investment property and certain
financial instruments which are measured at falue/athe Bank has adopted the historical cost
model as the principle of measurement of the firdmstatements. Where assets are impaired,
provisions for asset impairment are accrued in @@owe with relevant requirements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and the deposits wdunche paid on demand. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are tigadonvertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of chang value.

Financial instruments

The Bank recognises a financial asset or a finahalality when the Bank becomes a party to the
contract of the financial instrument. Financialessand financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value. For financial assetsfarahcial liabilities classified as fair value

through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), related transacticosts are charged to the profit or loss for the
current period; for financial assets and finankéddilities classified as other categories, related
transaction costs are included in the initial recign amounts.

Determination of financial instruments fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset coeléXchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s lengtinisaction. The Bank chooses the quoted prices
from an active market if there is an active mafkethe financial instrument. If no active market
exists for a financial instrument, the Bank estdi#s fair value by using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using recent markaetdactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, reference to the current fair value ofte@oinstrument that is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricinglats.

The effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calting the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets ftnancial liabilities) and interest income or

interest expense over the relevant period, usiagtfective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimataaré cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, wtegspropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liapilit

When calculating the effective interest rate, tlamiBestimates the future cash flows considering
all contractual terms of financial assets and fan@riabilities (without considering future credit
losses). The calculation includes all fees paitkoeived between the parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest raetransaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts ect.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Financial instrumentscontinued

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, financial assets are clfediinto the following categories: FVTPL,
‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘loans and receiles) and ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial
assets. For a financial asset traded in regular thayBank recognizes and derecognizes the
financial asset using trade date accounting.

The Bank’s financial assets are financial assef/atPL, loans and receivables and AFS
financial assets.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL wherdihancial asset is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL. The Bank's FVTPL is faidrading.

A financial asset is classified as held for tradingl) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or (2) ipat of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that are managed together and for whigte is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (3) it is a derivativexcept for a derivative that is a designated and
effective hedging instrument, or a financial guéearcontract, or a derivative that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equisgrument (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliabgasured.

Held for trading financial assets are subsequendgsured at fair value, with gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value as well as divids and interest income related to such
financial assets recognised in profit or loss fa turrent period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loansraaéivables of the Bank include balances with
PBOC, due from banks, placements with banks aner ditencial institutions, loans and
advances to customers, interest receivable and @beivables etc.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measuesdaatised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from derecognitrapairment or amortisation are recognized in
profit or loss for the current period.

138
-11-



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Financial instrumentscontinued

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets - continued

AFSfinancial assets

AFS financial assets are those non-derivative firdrassets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not classified as (1) financial asseB/TPL, (2) loans and receivables, and (3)
held-to-maturity investments.

AFS financial assets are subsequently measuredr atalue. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value (other than impairment losses aneifpr exchange gains and losses resulted from
foreign currency monetary assets which are recegnis profit or loss for the current period) are
recognised directly in owner’s equity, and are regd and recognised in profit or loss for the
period when such financial assets are derecognised.

Interest received during the period in which th@lBholds the AFS financial assets and cash
dividends declared by the investee are recognisé@avastment income.

| mpairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses the carrying amount of finaasgdts, other than those at FVTPL, at each
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidémaefinancial assets are impaired the Bank
determines the amount of any impairment loss. Qivgevidence that a financial asset is
impaired refers to one or more events that occuaftt the initial recognition of the asset and
that event has an impact on the estimated futisie ffaws of the financial asset which can be
reliably estimated.

Objective evidences that financial assets are iradanclude evidences arising from the

following events:

(2) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer debtor;

(2) A breach of contract by the borrower, such default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(3) The lender, for economic or legal reasons irggdb the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting a concession to the borrower;

(4) 1t has become probable that the borrower witeeinto bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(5) The financial assets discontinue trading iretive market because of financial difficulties of
the issuer;

(6) Upon an overall assessment of a group of fimdassets, observable data indicates that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated futsheflavs from group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,altih the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial asset in the group of fuie&l assets . Such observable data includes:
- adverse changes in the payment status of borsowehe Bank;
- adverse changes in industry or country conditmiithe borrowers that might affect the
repayment of the Bank of financial assets;

(7) Other objective evidence indicating there israpairment of a financial asset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Financial instruments continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

If financial assets carried at amortised cost mmgaired, the carrying amount of the financial
assets shall be reduced to the present valueiofastl future cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rég&cluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The amount of reduction shall be recsegghias an impairment loss in profit or loss. If,
after the recognition of impairment losses, theyiag amount of financial assets increases and
the increase can be related objectively to an everurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment losses arersed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the financial assets atiite the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had thaimpent not been recognised.

For a financial asset that is individually sign#it, the Bank conducts the impairment testing
individually. For a financial asset that is notiwidually significant, the Bank assesses the asset
individually for impairment or includes the asseigroup of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses tloenmpairment. For a financial asset that does
not need impairment after individual assessmeityde financial assets individually material
and immaterial ), the Bank reassesses the assettodly with a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics for impairmenhe financial asset that has impaired in
individual assessment does not need to be incliudedllectively assessment for impairment with
a group of financial assets with similar credikrtharacteristics.

Impairment of AFSfinancial assets

Where AFS financial assets are impaired, accunailateses due to decreases in fair value
previously recognised directly in owner's equity egversed and charged to profit or loss for the
current period. The reversed accumulated lossethar@sset's initial acquisition costs after
deducting amounts recovered and amortised, cuiaigntalue and impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the carrying amourinaincial assets increases and the increase can
be related objectively to an event occurring atfterimpairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment losses are reversed. Thesawe impairment losses of AFS equity
instruments is recognised in equity, and the immpait losses of AFS debt instruments are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Financial instruments continued

Transfers of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only wgigrthe contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or (2) drisfers the financial asset and substantiallyhall t
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset tartresferee; or (3) it transfers the financial gsset
neither transfers nor retains substantially allribles and rewards of ownership but has not
retained control of the financial asset.

Where the Bank does not either transfer or retalistantially all of the risks and rewards related
to the ownership of a financial asset, and if te@iBdoes not relinquish control over the financial
asset, it shall, to the extent of its continuowsinement in the financial asset, recognize it as a
related financial asset and recognize the releiamtity accordingly.The term "continuous
involvement in the transferred financial asset'listeder to the risk level that the Bank faces as a
result of any change in the value of the finanasset.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset sedssthe conditions relating to derecognition, the
difference between the amounts described in thewolg two items shall be recorded in the

profit or loss for the current period: 1) the ba@tue of the transferred financial asset; and &) th
sum of the total consideration received from tla@sfer and the cumulative amount of the change
in the fair value originally recorded in the owsezquity.

If the transfer of part of a financial asset s@&sthe conditions for derecognition, the Bank Ishal
allocate the carrying amount of the financial absttveen the part it continues to recognize under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longseagnize on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts (under such circumstances, thecgeagset retained shall be deemed to be a
portion of the financial asset which continues éaé&cognized). And the difference between the
amounts described in the following two items shallrecorded in the profit or loss for the current
period: 1) the book value of the derecognized partand 2) the sum of the total consideration
paid for the derecognized portion and the portibthe cumulative amount of changes in the fair
value originally recorded in the owner's equity @hcorresponds to the derecognized portion (in
the event that the financial asset involved intthasfer is a financial asset available for sale).

A financial asset which sold with an agreemenefmurchase in the near future, the Bank
continues to recognize it in the balance sheetd#&us from sales of such assets including the
interest are recognized as financial assets sadrunepurchase agreement in the balance sheet.
The difference between selling price and repurclpaise at the duration of the agreement is
recognized by the effective interest method aga@steexpense.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Financial instruments continued

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank recognizes the issued financial instrusastfinancial liabilities or equity instruments
according to the substance of the contractual prons of the financial instrument and the
definition of financial liabilities or equity ingiments.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities areassified as either financial liabilities at ‘faialue
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL) or ‘other financibilities’. The Bank's financial liabilities are
other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities linked to and whianust be settled by delivery of an unquoted
equity instrument (without a quoted price in anvactnarket) whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably are subsequently measured atQ@tisdr financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effectivedstenethod; gains or losses arising from
derecognition or amortisation are recognised irifpoo loss for the current period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts betaegrarantor and a creditor that when the
debtor defaults, the guarantor should perform aboddigations. Financial guarantee contracts
that are not designated as financial liabilitieST PL are initially recognised at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at the higher of theWolh two amounts: (1) the amount determined
in accordance with Accounting Standard for Busirteserprises No. 13 — Contingencies; and (2)
the amount initially recognised less cumulative grmation recognised in accordance with the
principles set out in Accounting Standard for Bess Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

An enterprise shall derecognise a financial ligp{lor part of it) only when the underlying
present obligation (or part of it) is discharged. &greement between the Bank (an existing
borrower) and an existing lender to replace thgioai financial liability with a new financial
liability under substantially different terms, thew financial liability shall be accounted for
meanwhile disreconising the original financial lidp.

When the Bank derecognises a financial liabilityagrart of it, the Bank shall recognise the
difference between the carrying amount of the fanariability (or part of the financial liability)
derecognised and the consideration paid (includmgnon-cash assets transferred or new
financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss five period.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andnieamount is reported in the balance sheetdf, an
only if, the Bank has a currently enforceable laggit to set off the recognized amounts and
intends to settle on a net basis, or to realizasset and settle the liability simultaneously.lin a
other situations they are presented separateheibalance sheet and are not offset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held eithergémerate rental income or for capital
appreciation or both. The Bank's investment prgpsra building for rent.

There is an active property market in the locatimrwhich the Bank’s investment property is
situated. The Bank can obtain the market priceahdr relevant information with respect to the
same or similar types of properties from the properarket so as to reasonably estimate the fair
value of the investment property. As a result, Bamk has adopted the fair value model for the
subsequent measurement of investment propertythenchanges in the fair value are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.

The Bank refers the market price and relevant médion with respect to the same or similar
types of properties from the property market teedeine the fair value of investment property.

When an investment property is sold , transferretited or damaged, the Bank recognizes the
amount of any proceeds on disposal net of the icaymount and related taxes in profit or loss
for the current period.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are hesdipmly of services, or for administrative purposes
and have useful lives more than one accounting ¥@exd assets shall be recognised only when
it is probable that economic benefits associatet thie assets will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the assets can be measured reliably. FEigsets are initially measured at historical cost.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on a fixed assetlisded in the cost of the fixed asset, only if
it is probable that economic benefits associatet thie asset will flow to the Bank and the
relevant cost can be measured reliably. Meanwhéecairrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. Other subsequent expenditure thaitdaineet the capitalization criteria is
recorded to profit or loss when incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated over their estimatefdidives from the month after they are in
available condition for the intended use, applyimg straight-line method. The useful lives,
estimated net residual values rates and annuatdegion rates of each class of fixed assets are
as follows:

Estimated Net Annual
Classes Useful Life Residual Value Depreciation Rate
Motor vehicles Syears 10% 18%
Office equipment Syears - 20%

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asseta@stimated amount that the Bank would
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, afenlucting the estimated costs of disposal, if the
asset were already of the age and in the expeotaditon at the end of its useful life.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued
Fixed assets continued

The fixed assets shall be derecognised when tle isssn disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to be generated from it®udesposal. When fixed assets are sold,
transferred, retired or damaged, the Bank recogrlze amount of any proceeds on disposal of
the asset net of the carrying amount and relatesbstan profit or loss for the current period.

The Bank reviews the useful life and estimatedresidual value of fixed assets and the
depreciation method applied at least at each fiahgear-end. Any change in the useful life or
estimated net residual value of fixed assets odépgeciation method used is treated as a change
in an accounting estimate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Bank include software.

An intangible asset is initially measured at cAstintangible asset with a finite useful life is
amortised using the straight-line method over #sful life when the asset is available for use. An
intangible asset with an indefinite useful lifenist amortised.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful litege Bank reviews the useful life and amortisation
method at least at each financial year-end and snaffeistments if necessary.

Long-term prepayments

Long-term prepayments are various expendituresriadubut that should be allocated over the
current and future periods of more than one yeangtterm prepayments are evenly amortized
over their respective beneficial period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than gathdw

The Bank reviews at each balance sheet date whibithrer is any indication that fixed assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life may bepaired. If any indication of that an asset may be
impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is estimated on the basisedhdividual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individsakg the Bank determines the recoverable
amount of the group of assets to which the asdehbs. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disp@sal the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is lessitsararrying amount, the difference between
recoverable amount and carry amount is recognisesh ampairment loss and recorded as profit
or loss for the current period.

Once an impairment loss of fixed assets and intd@gissets with finite useful life is recognized,
it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Employee benefits

In the accounting period in which the employee reaslered services, the Bank recognised the
employee benefits payables for those serviceshsity, except for the treatment of
compensations of employment termination.

The Bank participates in the social welfare sysherit by the government according to
regulations, including basic pension, medical iasge, housing accumulation fund and other
social welfare systems. Relevant expenses wileberded in the profit and loss at the time of
occurrence.

For the Bank's defined benefit plan, liabilities aneasured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method and discounted atatret reflects the current rate of return on a
high quality bond of equivalent term and currenzyhe defined benefit obligation. The current
service cost, past service cost and the unwindirigeodiscount on defined benefit obligation are
charged to current expenses. Actuarial gains asgkbare recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

When the Bank terminates the employment relatignshiih employees before the end of the
employment contracts or provides compensation agfanto encourage employees to accept
voluntary redundancy, if the Bank has a formal gtartermination of employment relationship
or has made an offer for voluntary redundancy wkidhbe implemented immediately, and at the
same time the Bank cannot unilaterally withdrawrfrihe termination plan or the redundancy
offer, a provision is recognised for the compermsadrising from termination of employment
relationship with employees, with a correspondihgrge to the profit or loss for the current
period.

General reserves

Pursuant to CAIJIN [2012] No. 20 “Administrative IRa of Provisions for Financial Enterprise”
issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF") and thedated regulations on 30 March 2012, the
financial institutions should select the internaldel method or standard method according to
their actual situation and make quantitative analggexposures in risk assets to determine the
potential risk estimate. If the risk estimate igh@r than the impairment of assets, the difference
should be recorded as general reserves, otherwipeorision of general reserves is required. In
principle, the general reserves should not bethess 1.5% of the risk assets.

The Bank provides 1.5% of risk assets balanceeab#iance sheet date as the general reserves
effective at the end of 2012. The provision of gaheeserves is considered as the current
distribution of profits and presented separatelthm owner's equity. The Bank's general reserves
of last year were provided according to CAIJIN [8D0lo. 49 "Measures on General Provision
for Bad and Doubtful Debts for Financial Institutgy issued by the MOF and the related
regulations.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are determined attiaetbcosts of relevant financial assets and
financial liabilities using the effective interasite, and recognised to profit or loss in the aqurre
period. If the difference between effective intéreste and contract interest rate is small, the
contract interest method is used.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognized when thteteservices are delivered on an accrual
basis.

Government Grants

Government grants are the transfer of monetaryj@ss@&on-monetary assets from the
Government to the Bank at no considerat®igovernment grant is recognised when the Bank
complies with the conditions attaching to the gamd when the Bank is able to receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfea monetary asset, the item is measured at the
amount received or receivable.

A government grant which relates to an asset isg®sed as deferred income, and evenly
amortised to profit or loss over the useful lifetlo¢ related asset.

For a government grant which relates to incomthafgrant is a compensation for related
expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequeantipethe grant is recognised as deferred
income, and recognised in profit or loss over teequls in which the related costs are recognised,;
if the grant is a compensation for related expeonséssses already incurred, the grant is
recognised immediately in profit or loss for thereat period.

Income tax

Income tax expenses comprise current tax expertsdefarred tax expense.

Current tax

At the balance sheet date, the current incomeisdnlities (or assets) for the current period or

previous periods are measured at the amount exptrtee paid (or recoverable) according to the
requirements of tax law.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences arising from the differenaween the carrying amount of an asset or
liability and its tax base, or the difference betwehe tax base and the carrying amount of those
items that are not recognised as assets or liabiliut have a tax base that can be determined
according to tax laws, are recognized as defeardssets and deferred tax liabilities using the
balance sheet liability method.

The Bank recognizes a deferred tax asset for thg faward of unused deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that fettaxable profits will be available against which
the deductible losses and tax credits can be ediliz

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assetslefieded tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period wherasset is realized or the liability is settled,
according to the requirements of tax laws.

Current income tax and deferred tax is recognipecurrent year profit and loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly teeotcomprehensive income or equity, in which
case the current tax is also dealt with in othengehensive income or equity.

At the balance sheet date, the Bank reviews thgyingramount of any deferred tax asset. If it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will nat bBvailable in future periods to allow the benefit
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, the cagramount of the deferred tax asset is reduced.
Any such reduction in amount is reversed to themixthat it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Tax asset and tax liability offset

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the racaeyl amounts and intends to either settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle thdityabimultaneously, tax asset and tax liability of
current period are offset and the net amount isgarad on the balance sheet.

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the eurirecome tax assets and current income tax
liabilities, the deferred tax assets and the detetax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the samebtaxantity, or different taxable entities which
intend to either settle current tax liabilities amskets on a net basis, or to realise the assgts an
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each fetperiod in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be sktiterecovered, are reported on a net basis.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING &TIMATES - continued

Translation of transactions denominated in for@agmencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transaatsoare translated by applying the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated ini¢precurrencies are translated into functional
currency at the spot exchange rate of the balaneet slate. Exchange differences arising from
the differences between the spot exchange ratbeobalance sheet date and the exchange rates
used on initial recognition or at the previous batsheet date are recognized in profit or loss for
the current period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatefrieign currency are carried at historical cost
using the exchange rates at the dates of the témss; non-monetary assets and liabilities
carried at fair value and denominated in foreigrrency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determinedfef@hces between the translated amount at
functional currency and the original amount at tiot@l currency are accounted for as changes in
fair value (including changes in exchange rategyafit or loss for the period.

Leases
A financial lease is a lease that transfers in wuiace all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Title may or may not evdlytuee transferred. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

The Bank records operating lease as | essee

Lease payments under an operating lease are reedgon a straight-line basis over the lease
term to the cost of the assets or to profit or mssthe period in which they are incurred. The
initial expenses are recorded as profit or losswheurred. Contingent rents are charged to profit
or loss in the period in which they are actuallgurred.

Fiduciary assets

The Bank provides fiduciary services to grant loamthe borrowers and collect the repayments
on behalf of the Bank’s clients. The fund is ested and the condition of credit, including the
usage of loan, the principle and the interest ratesdesignated by the client. The risk of the
fiduciary loan is taken by the client, the Bank i@jgs commission only for agency activities.
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not rembitethe Bank’s balance sheet.
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5.

BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI& AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMAES

In the application of the Bank’s accounting polgievhich are described in Note 4, the Bank is

required to make judgments, estimates and assumspébout the carrying amounts of items in

the financial statements that cannot be measuredrately. These judgments, estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experiendeeoBank's management as well as other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual resndtg differ from these estimates.

The aforementioned judgements, estimates and assumsjare reviewed regularly on a going
concern basis. The effect of a change in accoumetstighate is recognized in the period of the
change, if the change affects that period onlypoognized in the period of the change and future
periods, if the change affects both current andr&uperiods.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank makes foltpkey judgements, estimates and
assumptions:

Fair value of financial assets

For the financial instrument without active tradimgrket, the Bank determines its fair value by
various valuation techniques. The valuation techesgthat the Bank adopts include discounted
cash flow model. The Bank needs to make estimatimh as the credit risks, market volatility
and correlation of itself and counterparties. Ahgreges in the assumptions made will impact the
fair values of the financial instruments.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

Besides the loan loss provision provided beforeheggarter-end, the Bank reviews its loan
portfolios to assess impairment on a quarterlysdai determining whether an impairment loss
should be provided, the Bank makes judgments ashadher there is any objective evidence that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimatae ftash flows from loan portfolios if there is no
such decrease identified with an individual loanthat portfolio. The objective evidence may
include observable data indicating that there lenkan adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a Bank (e.g. payment delinquency diawlg, or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assetthe Bank. The Bank uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credik characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio whestimating expected future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating bo¢ amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any diffees between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Income tax

There are a number of transactions for which timalfitax determination and calculation is
uncertain during the ordinary course of businessratpn. In particular, the deductibility of
certain items is subjected to government approv@fhere the final tax outcome is different from
the amount that was initially recorded, such ddferes will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period during whiclelsa determination is made.
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5.

BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POOIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMAES - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are measuréldeatax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the assets are realized or the lisgslare settled, according to the requirements of
tax laws. Within the limit of sufficient availabl@axable profits against which the loss can be
deductible, the Bank recognizes deferred tax assgsst the deductible losses. This requires
management judgment to estimate the time of taxatolfits and appropriate tax rate to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

TAXATION

Income tax

According to “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PledpRepublic of China” (hereinafter called
as the “New Enterprise Income Tax Law”) issued cardhh 2007, the Bank is subjected to New
Enterprise Income Tax Law and relevant regulatieifisctive from 1 January 2008. The Branch
of the Bank implements the management method afnrectax collection in terms of unified
calculation, hierarchical management, local prepardtary liquidation and fiscal adjustment in
accordance with “The Temporary Measurement of Cagolncome Tax Allocation and Budget
Management for Multiple Provinces and Cities”. (Gai[2008] No.10) and “The Temporary
Methology of Corporate Income Tax Collection Unitafor Cross-regoinal Operation Enterprise”
(Guo fa [2008] No. 28).

According to “Notice on Implication of Enterpriseicome Tax Transitional Preferential Tax

Policy Issued by the State Council” (Guo fa [200Id. 39), the enterprises which entitle to the

preferential tax policy of the old tax law, regidex and other legal documents, will entitle to the
transitional preferential tax policy: From 1 Janu@008, the tax rate of the enterprises which
entitle to the low preferential tax policy are aled to transit to statutory tax rate gradually in 5
years after the implementation of New Enterprissoine Tax Law. The applicable tax rates are
that the enterprises which use 15% tax rate wipleament 18% tax rate in year 2008, 20% tax
rate in year 2009, 22% tax rate in year 2010, 2d4%aate in year 2011, and 25% tax rate in year
2012. The Bank’s Zhuhai Head office belongs to eéheerprises entitling to the preferential tax

policy mentioned above. The applicable tax rateymar 2012 is 25% (2011: 24%). The above
transitional preferential tax policy is not apphdato the Bank’s Beijing Branch.

Business tax

The business tax rate is 5%.
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6.

TAXATION - continued

Other tax
Urban Maintenance and Construction Tax is 7% ofrass tax.
Education Surcharge is 3% of business tax.

According to YueFuBan[2011] No. 10, the Head Offic&huhai of the Bank is obliged to pay
for Local Education Surcharge at the rate of 2%hefbusiness tax since 1 January 2011.

According to “Notice of Management of Education &warge Collection for Beijing” issued by
Beijing local government on 21 December 2011, thenBh in Beijing is obliged to pay the Local
Education Surcharge at the rate of 2% of the bgsitex since 1 January 2012.

BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Statutory reserves with the Central Bank 398,082,992.29 481,315,453.90
Other deposits with the Central Bank 607,734,141.62 47,390,624.27

1,005,817,133.91 528,706,078.17

Statutory reserves are placed according to theastaegulations promulgated by the PBOC. In

accordance with “Notice on Raising Reserve RateFtmeign Currency Deposits Issued by the
People’s Bank of China” [YinFa(2007)No.134], resemnate for all foreign currency deposits of

financial institutions was adjusted to 5% effectid® May 2007. Statutory reserve for foreign

currency business is deposited at 5% of the momthk&alances of the relevant deposit items.
Statutory reserve for foreign currency busineswis-interest bearing. The PBOC reserve rate for
all RMB deposits of financial institutions was 1%0and 19.0% on 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011 respectively. Statutory reserve fdBPRbusiness is based on the RMB deposit
balance at the end of each ten days.
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8. DUE FROM BANKS

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Due from domestic banks 13,138,035.26 307,891,873.4
Due from overseas banks 434,622,046.35 63,189,645.2
Total 447,760,081.61 371,081,514.69
Less: Provision of impairment of due from banks
-collective assessment 2,174,783.00 405,200.00
Net book value 445 585,298.61 370,676,314.69

9. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

Placements with domestic financial institutions 288761,013.35 2,196,956,700.00

10. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Bonds
- Government bonds and PBOC bills - 377,868,77®0
- Financial institution bonds 1,309,407,036.00 ,142,680,975.00
- Corporate bonds - 235,007,650.00
Total 1,309,407,036.00 1,755,557,401.00

As of balance sheet date, the face value of firsdrassets held for trading RMB400,000,000
(2011: RMB1,130,300,000) have been pledged for ndfase agreements (note 20). These
repurchase agreements will be matured within 1 mbwoim contract value date.

11. INTEREST RECEIVABLE

(1) Movement in interest receivable is as follows:
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Opening balance 33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47
Addition during the year 202,984,130.93 226,040,898
Received during the year (209,498,327.31) (217,88248.70)
Closing balance 26,657,868.95 33,172,065.33
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11.

12.

INTEREST RECEIVABLE - continued
(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Interest receivable from
- Balances with the Central Bank and due from banks 338,274.53 645,753.39
- Placements with banks and other financial ingtihs 5,377,502.41 3,668,166.40
- Loans and advances to customers 4 599,071.27 8,88547.00
- Financial assets held for trading 16,343,020.74 0,227,598.54
Total 26,657,868.95 33,172,065.33

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) Categorized by nature is as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Corporate loans and advances 594,282,500.00 735,4386.00
Less: Loan loss provision 5,942,825.00 7,354,984.96
Net book value 588,339,675.00 728,143,511.04
(2) Categorized by industry are as follows:
31/12/2012 Proportion 31/12/2011 Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Wholesale and retail 94,282,500.00 15.86 185,498100 25.22
Metals mining 200,000,000.00 33.65 200,000,000.00 7.12
Power production and supply  100,000,000.00 16.83 0,00®,000.00 13.60
Construction Industry 100,000,000.00 16.83 25000000 33.99
Leasing and commercial service 100,000,000.00 16.83 - -
Total 594,282,500.00 100.00 735,498,496.00 100.00
Less: Loan loss provision 5,942,825.00 7,354,98406
Net book value 588,339,675.00 728,143,511.04
153
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12. LOAN AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS - continued

(3) Categorized by registered location of the bwexs are as follows:

31/12/2012 Proportion 31/12/2011 Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)

Northern China 494,282,500.00 83.17 644,513,500.00 87.63
Southern China - - 90,984,996.00 12.37
Eastern China 100,000,000.00 16.83 - -
Total 594,282,500.00 100.00 735,498,496.00 100.00
Less: Loan loss provision 5,942,825.00 7,354,984.8
Net book value 588,339,675.00 728,143,511.04

(4) Categorized by contract agreement terms anchgtee pattern are as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Within a year 1 year to 5 years Within a year lyear to 5 years
(including 1year) (including 5 years) Over 5 years Total (including lyear) (including 5 years) Over 5 years Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Clean loans 300,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 - 500,000000.00 300,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 - 500,000,000
Guarantee loans - - - - 50,000,000.00 - - 50,000,00.00
Collateralized loans 94,282,500.00 - - 94,282,500.0 185,498,496.00 - - 185,498,496.00
Include:
Pledged loans 94,282,500.00 - - 94,282,500.00 18898,496.00 - - 185,498,496.00
Total 394,282,500.00 200,000,000.00 - 594,282,500.0 535,498,496.00  200,000,000.00 - 735,498,496.00
Less: Loan loss provision 5,942,825.00 7,354984.96
Net book value 588,339,675.00 728,143,511.04
Building
Opening and closing fair value 18,852,614.00

The investment property of the Bank is a buildvejued at fair value. The fair value is based on
an active market price, and adjusted accordingdaspecific asset's situation, location and
conditions if necessary. The Bank's investment @rtyps not pledged.
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14. FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

155

Office equipment

RMB

15,782,365.31
793,507.12

16,575,872.43

9,300,707.51
2,842,379.38

12,143,086.89

6,481,657.80

4,432,785.54

Software
RMB

11,237,266.65
1,140,760.00

12,378,026.65

5,778,887.03
2,379,686.96

8,158,573.99

5,458,379.62

4,219,452.66
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16. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1)

(@)

)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disadias gross as follows:

Deductible temporary differences Deferred tax assets
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Long-term service benefit&employee

benefit 4,315,872.53 2,913,822.30 1,078,968.13 ,428.58
Intangible asset amortization

difference between tax and

accounting 4,079,286.97 2,889,443.47 1,019,821.74 722,360.87
Change in fair value of
financial assets held for trading  9,958,594.70 94@,989.70 2,489,648.68 1,235,247.43
Nondeductible accrual expenses - 3,150,450.00 - 787,612.50
Total 18,353,754.20 13,894,705.47 4,588,438.55 73676.38
Taxable temporary differences Deferred tax liabilities
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Change in fair value of
investment property 18,852,614.00 18,852,614.00 ,7131153.50 4,713,153.50
Impairment on financial assets 675,114.14 21,5046 168,778.54 5,376,066.75
Total 19,527,728.14 40,356,881.00 4,881,932.04 8B0220.25

The Bank nets off deferred tax assets andlili@si and presents in net basis.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclossdas follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Deferred tax assets 4,588,438.55 3,473,676.38
Deferred tax liabilities 4,881,932.04 10,089,220.25
Net total (293,493.49) (6,615,543.87)

The New Enterprises Income Tax Law is impleradritom 1 January 2008. According to
“Notice on Implementation of Enterprise Income Taansitional Preferential Tax Policy
Issued by the State Council” (Guo fai [2007] No),38e enterprises which entitled to the
preferential tax policy of the old tax law, regutex and other legal documents, will entitle
to the transitional preferential tax policy: FromJanuary 2008, the tax rate of the
enterprises which entitle to the low preferentiak tpolicy are allowed to transit to
statutory tax rate gradually in 5 years after thplementation of New Enterprises Income
Tax Law. The applicable tax rate are that the @ns¥s which use 15% tax rate will
implement 18% tax rate in year 2008, 20% tax ratgdar 2009, 22% tax rate in year
2010, 24% tax rate in year 2011, and 25% tax rateear 2012. The Bank’s Head Office
belongs to the enterprises entitling to the prefeaé tax policy mentioned above. The
applicable tax rate for year 2012 is 25% (2011: R4%he preferential tax policy
mentioned above is not applicable to the Bank'giBgBranch.
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17.

OTHER ASSETS

Security deposits

Prepaid expenses

Long-term prepayments (1)
Consulting fee receivables
Intangible assets prepayments (2)
Others

Total

Less Provision of losses of receivables

Net book value

(1) Long-term prepayments

Cost
Opening and closing balance

Amortisation
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net Book Value
Opening balance

Closing balance

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
1,208,576.67 1,208,576.67
1,439,664.93 898,716.02

250,008.81 907,117.00

6,134,856.68 4,112,369.9
21,916,423.42 1%89,187.79
397,409.33 236,673.79

31,346,939.84 24,952,641.24

37,712.99 60,1000

31,309,226.85 24,892,541.24

Leasehold Improvement
RMB

12,853,916.48

11,946,799.48
657,108.19

12,603,907.67

907,117.00

250,008.81

(2) Intangible assets prepayments are expenditgrened by the Bank for new IT systems which

is in development stage.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Due to domestic financial institutions

31/12/2012
RMB

31/12/2011
RMB

201,478,41217 476,982,076.68

PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTONS

Placements from domestic banks
Placements from overseas banks

Total

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Classified by collateralized assets:

Bonds

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Current deposits
Corporate
Individual

Time deposits
Corporate
Individual

Total

31/12/2012 31/12/2012
RMB RMB
- 30,000,000.00

160,280,250.00 aGX1382D.00
160,280,250.00 165,469,350.00

31/12/2012
RMB

31/12/2011
RMB

392,000,000.00 1,080,300,000.00

31/12/2012
RMB

31/12/2011
RMB

58,500,652.82
8,534.51

71,137,152.01
106,031.63

1,525,328,425.27 2,523,983,496.85
4,250,214.81 4,903,090.80

1,588,087,827.41 2,600,129,771.29
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22.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE

Accruals Payments
1/1/2012 for the year for the year 31/12/2012
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies 3,920,774.70 28,492922. (27,784,309.18) 4,629,687.81

Staff welfare (1) 1,759,114.33 1,143,056.17 (688,43) 2,220,134.07
Social security contributions 55,109.19 1,598,208.0 (1,266,191.60) 387,125.59
Housing funds - 658,403.00 (658,403.00) -

Compensation to employees
for termination of
employment - 874,297.00 (874,297.00) -

Total 5,734,998.22 32,767,186.46 (31,265,237.21) 23@,947.47

(1) Defined benefit plan ("DBP")

Included in staff welfare is a defined benefit plaumich is a private retirement and savings
plan set up for the Bank’s employees in additiotheongovernment retirement plan. Monthly
contributions of the plan are accrued based on &asey with contribution rate of 8%
(subject to a maximum of RMB10,000 of employer psmn per month). Effective 1 January
2012, for employees who have over 10 years of sesyithe above contributions of the plan
are accrued based on base salary with contribugitenof 12% (subject to a maximum of
RMB12,000 of employer’s provision per month). THarpbenefits are equal to the accrued
contributions plus interest and are payable uperrélirement or the resignation of the
employees. Vesting percentage will have a 20% asedor each full year of firm services,
until 100% for 5 full years of firm services.

The Bank evaluates the present value of unfundédetkbenefit obligation on an actuarial
basis. The present value of unfunded defined bieoletigation, current service cost and past
service cost are all measured at projected unditcneethod.

(&) The principal actuarial assumptions at thermaasheet date are as follaws

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Discount rate 3.5% 3.3%
Rate of increase in salaries 7.0% 7.0%
Cash balance credit rate 3.0% 3.5%

31/12/2012 and 31/12/2011

Mortality rate China Life Table 2002-2003
Withdrawal 15%
Retirement age 65
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22. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE - continued
(1) Defined benefit plan ("DBP") - continued

(b) The amounts recognized in operating expensessirect of DBP are as follows:

2012 2011

RMB RMB
Current service cost 1,634,900.63 740,927.38
Interest on obligation 54,000.00 24,680.56
Total 1,688,900.63 765,607.94

(c) Reconciliation of the present value of defirfehefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets included in employee benefit payable:

2012/12/31 2011/12/31
RMB RMB

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligatio 2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation - -

2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
Net liability 2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
Retirement benefit obligation 2,220,134.07 1,759,230

(d) Movement in the present value of DBP obligatiarere as follows:

2012 2011

RMB RMB
Opening 1,759,114.30 822,855.03
Current service cost 1,634,900.63 740,927.38
Interest cost 54,000.00 24,680.56
Actuarial (gain)/losses (545,844.46) 346,844.46
Benefits paid (557,865.90) (176,193.13)
Transfer out (124,170.50) -
Closing 2,220,134.07 1,759,114.30
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23. CURRENT TAX PAYABLE

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Corporate income tax 1,124,110.98 5,400,297.23
Business tax and surcharge 2,357,545.39 5,580,39%9
Individual income tax 26,022.89 36,320.94
Others 351,224.01 129,934.56
Total 3,858,903.27 11,146,952.69

24. INTEREST PAYABLE
(1) Movement in interest payable is as follows:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Opening balance 16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50
Addition during the year 137,575,468.99 148,618,288
Payment during the year (138,647,580.45) (138,85%9.70)
Closing balance 15,897,567.14 16,969,678.60

(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Interest payable from
- Customer deposits 6,934,447.85 9,784,665.71
- Due to banks and other financial institutions 5,974,685.77 4,325,709.82
- Placements from banks and other financial instins 2,737,768.32 2,292,438.96
- Repurchase agreements 250,665.20 566,864.11
Total 15,897,567.14 16,969,678.60
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25.

26.

27.

OTHER LIABILITIES

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Security deposits 301,742.88 301,742.88
Accrued expenses 1,856,055.05 2,351,586.79
Deferred income 258,750.05 1,556,909.61
Other payables (1) 15,992,216.93 16,939,974.89
Total 18,408,764.91 21,150,214.17

(1)Other payables
31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Payable for intangible assets purchases 13,868507. 11,466,965.76
Payable to related parties - 3,180,400.44
Others 2,129,709.29 2,292,608.69
Total 15,992,216.93 16,939,974.89

PAID-IN CAPITAL

The registered capital of the Bank is RMB 1,000,000.00, and was fully paid up as of 31
December 2012. Details of capital contribution fridm investor according to the Bank's articles
are as follows:
31/12/2012 & 31/12/2011
Original Currency Proportion Amount
(%) RMB Equivalent

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited RMB 67% 666,000,000.00
HKD 33% 334,000,000.00

1,000,000,000.00

The aforementioned paid-in capitals has been eerifiy Guangdong HengXin DeLv CPA firm,
while the capital verification reports of HengDeuwZlan No.72 (2002) and HengDe Zhu Yan
No.11 (2007) have been issued accordingly.

SURPLUS RESERVES

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
Opening balance 44,966,409.60 39,503,162.77
Addition during the year 5,103,187.80 5,463,246.83
Closing balance 50,069,597.40 44,966,409.60
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28.

29.

30.

CAPITAL RESERVES

Opening balance
Addition/(reversal) during the year
DBP revaluation reserve

Deferred tax effect of DBP revaluation reserve

Closing balance

GENERAL RESERVES

Opening balance
Addition/(reversal) during the year

Closing balance

RETAINED EARNINGS

Opening balance

Net profit for the year

Appropriation to surplus reserves (1)
Appropriation to general reserves (2)

Closing balance

(1) Surplus reserves

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB RMB
(260,133.36) -
409,383.36 (260.33.36)
545,844.46 (346,844.46)
(136,461.10) 86,711.10
149,250.00 (260,133.36)

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

33,316,907.91  21,077,745.89
(12,838,907.91) 12,239,162.02

20,478,000.00 33,316,907.91

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

206,375,493.22  169,445,433.79
51,031,877.98  54,632,468.28
(5,103,18y.80(5,463,246.83)
12,838,907.9(12,239,162.02)

265,143,091.31 206,375,493.22

According to the board meeting resolution, the Bapkropriates 10% of profit after tax to
the surplus reserves effective year 2007 untillibard amends the distribution policy in the

future periods.

(2) General reserves

According to CAIJIN [2012] No. 20 “Administrative Rules of Provisions for Financial
Enterprisé¢ issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”") and tledated regulations, the Bank
appropriates 1.5% to general reserves based drisit@ssets as of year-end starting 2012.
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31.

32.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
- Due from banks
- Balances with the Central Bank
- Placements with banks and other financial in8ths
- Financial assets held for trading
- Loans and advances to customers

Subtotal

Interest expenses
- Due to bankand other financial institutions
- Placements from banks and other financial imstihs
- Repurchase agreements
- Customer deposits

Subtotal

Net interest income

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
-Entrusted loans
-Arrangement fee for syndicated loans
-Consulting fee
-Settlement and clearing fee
-Fees related to credit business
-Guarantee fee income
-Others

Subtotal

Fee and commission expenses
-Syndicated loans
-Funding expenses
-Other fee expenses

Subtotal

Net fee and commission income

164

2012
RMB

5,227,853.23
9,618,115.55
46,339,417.53

2011
RMB

1,331,403.14
1665,473.37
41,253,535.12

102,625,506.4827,145,473.71

39,173,238.19

3945,008.22

202,984,130.93

226,040,893.56

18,189,011.75

5,622,253.62
41,347,634.33
72,416,569.29

7,35118.23
14,349,153.10
42,730,286.4
84,180,731.02

137,575,468.99

148,618,288.80

65,408,661.94

77,422,604.76

2012
RMB

1,360,000.00
13,334,828.%2

72,618,826.35

7,843.65

2,437.02

1,416,217.25
63,607.33

2011
RMB

1,850,000.00
8,043,741.52
79,479,248.09
23,783.82
2244899.
97,148.96
67,108.33

88,803,759.75

89,785,730.15

- 1,687,034.57
2,278,975.50 1,187,507.18
2,223,241.81 1,962,110.85
4,502,217.31 4,836,652.60

84,301,542.44 84,949(7.55
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33.

34.

35.

36.

INVESTMENT INCOME/ (LOSSES)

2011
RMB

(28,154,695.62)

2012

RMB
Disposal of financial assets held for trading 4,880.00
GAIN/(LOSSES) FROM CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

2012

RMB

Financial assets held for trading
Investment property

Total

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Investment property rental income

BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES

Business tax
Surcharges

Total

2011
RMB

(5,017,605.00) ,432570.30

(636,173.00)

(5,017,605.00)

41,819,397.30

2012 2011
RMB RMB
1,242,174.87 1,4)971.52
2012 2011
RMB RMB

10,120,372.99
1,384,988.38

12,848,086.25
1,726,072.36

11,505,361.37

14,574,158.61
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37.

38.

39.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff salaries and welfare

Operating lease rentals and utilities expenses
Long-term prepayments amortization
Electrical equipment maintenance fees

Depreciation

Intangible assets amortization
Travelling expenses

Service fees

Fees to regulators
Entertainment expenses
Taxes

Others

Total

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Loans and advances to customers
Due from banks
Other receivables

Total

2012
RMB

33,596,485.84

7,010,850.73
657,108.19
4,800,417.02
2,842,379.38
2,379,686.96
2,175,677.52
1,200,000.00
726,490.16
339,420.99
225,530.70
5,393,161.69

2011
RMB

32,542%860
6,223,675.00
3,94@78.97

5,296,101.66
2,980,382.43
1,88904.80
1,631,423.29
1,200,000.00

699,846.34

357,140.02

179,265.59
5,038,987.52

61,347,209.18

61,984,666.59

2012 2011
RMB RMB
(1,409,604.96) 4B3%596

1,767,874.20 405,200.00

(22,387.01) 60,100.00
335,882.23  7,820,284.96

The Bank adopts significant estimates to provideviant provision for impairment, with
reference to macro economy development and chamgegell as similar-scale banks’ data of

collective assessment.

As of 31 December 2012]ate loss ratio of the Bank is 1%. The

provision coverage ratio is not applicable becabseBank has nil non-performaing loans.

NON-OPERATING INCOME

Fees from withholding tax
Gain from fixed assets disposal
Others

Total

2012 2011
RMB RMB
185,224.48 318,386.67
- 11,458.49
15.73 67.94
185,240.21 329,913.10
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40.

41].

42.

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Penalty and overdue payments
Loss from fixed assets disposal
Others

Total

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses

Deferred tax expenses

Adjustment for last year income tax
Include: Income tax expenses

Total

2012 2011
RMB RMB
250,023.49 783.59
- 39,048.28
80,362.21 0.25
330,385.70 39,832.12
2012 2011
RMB RMB
21,965,302.19  6,643,548.78
(6,458,511.48) 10,857,694.33
(67,475.80) $20.51
(67,475.80) 5,220.51

15,439,314.91

17,506,463.62

Reconciliation of income tax expenses to accountnagits is as follows:

Accounting profit
Tax calculated at Head Office tax rate 25%
in current year (24% in last year)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Estimated effect of tax rate change
Adjustment for regional tax rate difference
Adjustment for last year income tax
Non-taxable income

Income tax expenses

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSSEYS)

Actuarial gain/(losses) recognised in DBP
Effect of DBP losses on deferred tax

Total
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2012
RMB

66,471,192.89

16,617,798.22
304,815.%Y

(67,475.80)
(1,415,822.68)

2011
RMB

72,138,931.90

7,313,343.66
303,395.92
92,651.73
61001.98
$20.51
(269,150.18)

15,439,314.91

17,506,463.62

2012 2011
RMB RMB
545.884.  (346,844.46)
(136,461.10) 86,711.10
409,383.36 (260,133.36)
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43.

44,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2012
RMB

Balances with the Central Bank

Statutory reserve

Original maturity within 3 months:

Due from banks

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions -

2011
RMB

1,005,817,133.91 52806,078.17
(398,082,992.29) (481,315,453.90)

447,760,081.61 371,081,514.69

1,957,522,500.00

Total

1,055,494,223.23 2,375,994,638.96

CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

2012
RMB

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from oatng activities

Net profit 51,031,877.98
Add: Impairment loss 335,882.23
Depreciation of fixed assets 2,842,379.38
Amortization of intangible assets 2,379,686.96
Amortization of long-term prepayments 657,108.19

Losses on disposal of fixed assets
Investment income/(loss)

Bond interest income

Losses/(gains) from changes in fair value
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables
Increase/(decrease) in operating payables

(4,380,830.00)
(102,625,506.43)
5,017,605.00
(6,322,050.38)
172,273,800.02
(1,988,926,826.05)

2011
RMB

54,632,468.28
7,820,284.96
2,980,382.43
1,889,004.80
3,946,478.97
27,589.79
28,154,695.62
(127,145,473.71)
(41,819,397.30)
10,857,694.33
(386,887,652.58)
872,966,406.06

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (1,867,716,873.10)

427,422,481.65

Cash and cash equivalents net increase
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
Less: Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

1,055,84,223.23 2,375,994,638.96
75,293,638.96 1,060,423,815.99

Cash and cash equivalents net increase/(decrease) (1,320,500,415.73)

1,315,570,822.97
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45,

SEGMENT INFORMATION

According to the Bank's internal organizationalusture, regulatory requirements and internal
reporting system, the Bank's businesses are dividedollowing reporting segments, which are

based on the Bank's operational location. The Bamkanagement periodically evaluates
operating results of these segments reporting terméne resources allocation and evaluates
operating results.

Information of segment reporting is disclosed basethe accounting policies and measurement
used when segments report is provided to the mamagfe These measurement bases are
consistent with the accounting policies and measarg used when preparing the financial
statements.

Segment report information:

2012
Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Operating income 97,348,213.16 42,456,578.00 - 139804,791.16
Net interest income 28,538,481.61 36,870,180.33 - 65,408,661.94
Include:
Net interest income
between segments (70,057,071.69) 70,057,071.69 - -
Net fee and
commission income 78,730,666.34 5,570,876.10 - 84,31,542.44
Net other income (9,920,934.79) 15,521.57 - (9,905413.22)
Operating expenses 28,833,238.22 44,355,214.56 - ,1883152.78
Operating profit/(loss) 68,514,974.94 (1,898,636.66 - 66,616,338.38
Segment assets 2,901,497,737.87 1,018,029,726.57 6M195,359.57 3,723,382,104.87
Segment liabilities 1,509,738,550.14 973,948,975.59 96,145,359.57  2,387,542,166.16
Additional information:
Depreciation and amortization 4,472,630.04 1,406408 - 5,879,174.53
Capital expenditures 1,718,574.95 215,692.17 - 1,93%,267.12
Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets 577,814.95 2151692 - 793,507.12
Expenditures on
intangible assets 1,140,760.00 - - 1,140,760.00
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45, SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment report information: - continued

2011
Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Operating income 133,908,241.71 22,319,719.37 - 156227,961.08
Net interest income 55,342,596.48 22,080,008.28 - 77,422,604.76
Include:
Net interest income
between segments (51,092,507.38) 51,092,507.38 - -
Net fee and commission income 84,736,769.00 2125308 - 84,949,077.55
Net other income (6,171,123.77) 27,402.54 - (6,143721.23)
Operating expenses 42,996,409.91 41,382,700.25 - ,3784.10.16
Operating profit/(loss) 90,911,831.80 (19,062,98@8 - 71,848,850.92
Segment assets 5,377,537,475.86 2,135,412,719.49 ,84,052,932.46) 5,668,897,262.89
Segment liabilities 4,035,387,048.82 2,086,548325.(1,744,052,932.46) 4,377,883,041.66
Additional information:
Depreciation and amortization 4,804,472.91 4,013.29 - 8,815,866.20
Capital expenditures 3,991,660.46 80,599.00 - 4,072259.46
Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets 1,513,757.63 13010:)¢) - 1,594,356.63
Expenditures on
long-term prepayments 327,211.73 - - 327,21.73
Expenditures on
intangible assets 2,150,691.10 - - 2,19,691.10

(1) External revenue categorized by products oinesses

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Trading 89,645,226.20 123,185,812.02
Loans and corporate bonds 41,029,231.38 35,255,885.
Others 15,641,164.58 (2,213,736.41)
Total 146,315,622.16 156,227,961.08
(2) External revenue categorized by regions
2012 2011
RMB RMB
Domestic external revenue 70,718,004.75  79,078,539.
Overseas external revenue 75,597,617.41  77,149423.
Total 146,315,622.16 156,227,961.08
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45. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(3) Non-current assets categorized by assets tosati
The Bank's non-current assets are located in China.
(4) Key client's dependency
The Bank does not have significant dependencyioelstiip with non-related party.

Inter-segment transfers are measured on the biaacu@l transaction price for such transfers.
Segment revenue and segment expenses are detewnitieel basis of actual revenue and
expenses of the segments respectively.

46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Related party with controlling relationship:

Share proportion
Name Place of registration  Principal business Reqistered capital in the Bank

Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited United Kingdom Financial seice GBP790,000,000.00 100%

There are no changes in registered capital ane gitaportion in the Bank occurred for the
shareholder of the Bank, Morgan Stanley Bank Irggonal Limited. The Bank’s ultimate
parent is Morgan Stanley.

(2) The following are other related parties which havensactions with the Bank with no
controlling relationship exists:

Name Place of reqistration Related party relationship
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited Hong Kong, China Subgity of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Properties (China) Co., Ltd Beijing, Chha Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy

(Beijing) Company Limited Beijing, China Subsidiaryfdhe parent group
Morgan Stanley Information Technology

(Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading (China) Limited afghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Management Service

(Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy

(Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Business Consulting (Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management ShenzhenaChirRelated party directly or indirectly

Company Limited controlled by parent group
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (China), Ltd Shanghai, @ina Subsidiary of investor which has

significant influence over the parent group

The related parties of the Bank also includes kepnagement personnel, their close family
members or entities which are subject to contmhtjcontrol or significant influence from
key management personnel’s close family membeemsEctions between the Bank and the
related parties that are significant are disclassgghrately and those that are not significant are
disclosed together.
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46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONScontinued

(3) As of balance sheet date, the significant transastbetween the Bank and the above related
parties for the year are as follows:

Interest income

2012 2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 306,321.28 0.15 17,852.53 0.01
Interest expenses
2012 2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 4,525,737.46 3.29 1,253,186 0.84
Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd. 51,003.94 0.04 246,510.17 0.17
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd - - 607,797.22 0.41
Total 4,576,741.40 3.33 2,107,461.45 1.42
Fee and commission income
2012 2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited 72,618,826.35 81.77 479,248.09 88.52
Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading
(China) Limited 1,250,000.00 1.41 1,250,000.00 391.
Morgan Stanley Business Consulting
(Shanghai) Limited 100,000.00 0.11 100,000.00 01
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund
Management Company Limited 5,000.00 0.01 30,000.0 0.03
Morgan Stanley
Information Technology (Shanghai) Limited 2,50.0 0.00 50,000.00 0.07
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited 2,500.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.03
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited - - 325,000.00 0.36
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Shanghai) Co. Limited - - 65,000.00 0.07
Total 73,978,826.35 83.30 81,329,248.09 90.58
Fee and commission expenses
2012 2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 2,278,975.50 50.62 1,187,507.18 24.55
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46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONScontinued

(3) As of balance sheet date, the significant taisns between the Bank and the above related
parties for the year are as follows: - continued

Operating expenses

2012 2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited 1,200,000.00 1.96 1,200,000.00 1.94

The Bank has business with related parties in therse of daily business according to
ordinary business terms.

(4) As of balance sheet date, the major balances betiteeBank and the above related parties
are as follows:

Placements with banks and other financial insonsi

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd - - 126,018,000.00 5.74
Interest receivable
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd - - 17,852.53 0.05

Placements from banks and other financial instngi

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 160,280,250.00 100.00 135,469,350.00 81.87
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46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONScontinued

(4) As of balance sheet date, the major balancgcle@ the Bank and the above related parties
are as follows: - continued

Customer deposits

174

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd. 17,681,425.34 1.11 36,571,358.59 1.41
Others 24,982.33 0.00 4,533.69 0.00
Total 17,706,407.67 1.11 36,575,892.28 1.41
Interest payable
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 2,737,768.32 17.22 1,194,163.96 7.04
Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd. 1,841.59 0.01 8,126.96 0.05
Other 2.67 0.00 - -
Total 2,739,612.58 17.23 1,202,290.92 7.09
Other assets
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited 6,134,856.68 19.59 4,107,836.53 16.50
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 351,218.40 1.12 119,396.57 0.48
Total 6,486,075.08 20.71 4,227,233.10 16.98
Other liabilities
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited 571,739.01 3.11 200,000.00 0.95
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited - - 3,180,400.44 15.04
Total 571,739.01 3.11 3,380,400.44 15.98
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46.

47.

48.

49.

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONScontinued

(5) Compensation of key management personnel

2012 2011
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Compensation of key
management personnel 8,330,907.08 24.80 5,611,313.60 17.24

Key management personnel are those who have theréaytand responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Ban

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Letters of guarantee
Loan Commitment

FIDUCIARY ASSETS

Entrusted Deposit

Entrusted Loan

31/12/2012
RMB

3,720,400.00
13,660,486.65

31/12/2011
RMB

193,190,400.00

31/12/2012
RMB

164,000,000.00

31/12/2011
RMB

483,000,000.00

164,000,000.00

483,000,000.00

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Bank calculated capital adequacy and core alapilequacy according to the “Rules
Governing Commercial Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ra{ioBRC Year 2004 No.2 regulation) are
as follows

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
Risk weighted assets 751,049 629,131

Market risk capital 48,472 51,773

Capital net value 1,337,528 1,287,499
Include: Core capital 1,321,658 1,270,216
Subordinated capital 15,871 17,283
Core capital adequacy ratio 97% 100%
Capital adequacy ratio 99% 101%
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50.

51.

(1

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank had theviol commitments in respect of
non-cancellable operating leases:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011

RMB’000 RMB’000
The minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases:
Within one year 5,224 5,747
In the second year 3,771 5,747
In the third year 72 4,164

Total 9,067 15,658

RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview of risk management
(1) Overview of risks

The Bank is exposed to various risks in its busirgserations, especially the use of financial
instruments; risks are becoming diversified and glocated. The key risks faced by the Bank
are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and evptional risk. Market risks include foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk.

The Bank's risk management objectives are to aetpeoper balance between risks and yield,
minimize the adverse impacts of risks on the Bapkidormance, and maximize the benefits
of the Bank. Based on these risk management obgsctihe Bank's basic risk management
strategy is to identify and analyze the industexposure to various risks, establish appropriate
bottom line for risk tolerance, implement risk mgement, and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measurements are implementadimely and effective manner.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsilie déstablishing the Bank's overall risk
management strategies, monitoring and evaluatiegB#ink's risk management and internal
control system by Risk Committee, Credit Managem@ummittee, Assets/Liabilities
Committee, Operational Risk Committee, Compliancem@ittee, Senior Management
Committee and other committees.
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51.

(1N

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk

(1) Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when the borrower or countegptails to meet the required obligations in
the agreement on due date.

The Bank's credit risk mainly arises from creditsiness. Under the leadership of Risk
Management Committee, the Bank has implementedlghding and risks management
policies, carries out credit investigation and assent before credit lending and grants credits
according to limit approved. The Bank has establispolicies related to daily loans and
post-lending management, credit classificationerggt calculation and accrual, and loan
provision accrual and write-off (report on doubtfaans etc.). The Bank management team
monitors and supervises the above mentioned anellg limit. The Bank controls credit risks
through credit investigation and evaluates couitigs financial and operational conditions.
The Bank assesses the clients according to thenaiteredit classification standards and
provides facility to clients, and the clients asgritted to borrow within the approved facility.

(2) Maximum credit risk exposure information

Without taking into account of any collateral hedd any other credit enhancement, the
maximum credit risk exposure as of the balancetdiette is the carrying amount of financial
assets less impairment loss. The maximum crediesposure is disclosed below:

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

On-balance sheet items

Loans and advances to customers 588,339,675.00 ®143,511.04

Inter-banks receivable 734,346,311.96 2,567,633,014.69

Include: Due from banks 445,585,298.61 370,676,869

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 288,761,013.35 2,196,9560.00

Financial assets held for trading 1,309,407,0360@ 1,755,557,401.00

Interest receivable 26,657,868.95 33,172,065.33

Other financial assets 7,661,222.77 5,380,243.51
Total on-balance sheet items 2,666,412,114.68 5,08%86,235.57
Total off-balance sheet items 17,380,886.65 193418000
Total 2,683,793,001.33 5,283,076,635.57

Other financial assets include security deposds fieeceivable etc.

Except for credit loans, certain credit enhancenmeasures such as guarantee, pledge are
taken by the Bank for other loans, off-balance sktems etc, to mitigate credit risk exposure
to an acceptable level.
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51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(I Credit risk - continued
(3) Loans and advances to customers and inter-lracks/ables
Overdue and impaired

(i) As of the year end of 2012, the Bank has aérdue or impaired loans and advances to
customers and inter-banks receivable. (2011: Nil)

(i) Not overdue and not impaired

31/12/2012
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 588,339,675.00 588,339,675.00
Inter-banks receivable 734,346,311.96  734,346,3%6.
31/12/2011
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 728,143,511.04 728,143,511.04
Inter-banks receivable 2,567,633,014.69 2,567,6834.69

For loans and advances to customers and inter-bedaivable not overdue and not
impaired, the Bank has provided provision accordangollective assessment.

(4) Financial assets held for trading

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB
Neither overdue nor impaired
Bonds held for trading 1,309,407,036.00 1,755,5401.00

The investments in debt securities mainly inclu@OR bills, financial institution bonds
and corporate bonds held by the Bank. All corpobateds are rated as A above in China
Bond rating (There is no corporate bond positiothatend of 2012).
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51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(I Credit risk - continued

(5) Analysis on credit risk concentration of fineal@ssets

The Bank manages credit risk concentration of fom@nassets by industry, relevant analysis
can refer to note 12(2).

() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcyisad from the Bank's failure to provide sufficient
funds for the decrease in liabilities or the inese@ assets. Liquidity risk can also be caused by
the mismatch between the amount and maturity betwssets and liabilities.

(1) Liquidity risk management

According to the Law of the People's Republic ofr@hon Commercial Bank and related
regulations, the Bank needs to maintain the liquiditio of not less than 25%. At the same
time, the Bank manages liquidity risk according the maturity dates of assets and
liabilities.

To manage Bank's liquidity risk, the Bank implensehtorresponding Liquidity and
Funding Risk Management Policy, which includesftil®wing:

(i) Treasury functions closely monitor the structurdkMB and foreign currency position,
term, limit, and cost of maintaining liquidity.

(i) The Assets/Liabilities Committee holds meeting rhgnto review liquidity risk and
discusses the optimization of assets and liakslgieucture.

(i) The Assets/Liabilities Committee reviews the asaets liabilities management report
(“ALCO report”) and business pipelines to ensure tppropriate liquidity and
funding structures are in place.
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51.

()

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Liquidity risk - continued

(2) Analysis on liquidity risk of non-derivative insments

The following is the maturity analysis for assats #iabilities held by the Bank:

The following table presents the undiscounted ramgicontractual cash flow of the Bank

for non-derivative financial assets and liabilitaasat balance sheet date.

31/12/2012
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RIB’'000
Financialassets
Balances with the Central Bang08,072 - - 398,083 1,006,155
Due from banks 447,760 - - 447,760
Placements with banks and
other financial institution - 90,780 1,593 111,816 99,518 303,707
Financial assets held for trading 1,325,535 - - - 1,325,535
Loans and advances
to customers - - 5,932 607,070 - 613,002
Other financial assets 6,140 351 - 1,208 7,699
Total financial assets 1,055,832 1,422,455 7,876 718,886 99,518 399,291 3,703,858
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 64 100,960 - 107,602 - 208,626
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions - 90,129 34,779 38,705 163,613
Repurchase agreements - 392,376 - - 392,376
Customer deposits 58,515 687,382 970 874,278 - 1,621,1451
Other financial liabilities - 15,343 592 - 2,215 18,150
Total financial liabilities 58,579 1,286,190 36,341 1,020,585 2,215 2,403,920
Net value 997,253 136,265 (28,465) (301,699) 99,518 397,076 1,299,948
31/12/2011
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 R1B'000
Financialassets
Balances with the Central Bank47,711 - - 481,315 529,026
Due from banks 71,082 300,654 - - 371,736
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 1,701,445 257,813 248,159 - 2,207,417
Financial assets held for trading 1,775,785 - - 1,775,785
Loans and advances
to customers - 93,186 108,451 360,541 207,806 - 769,984
Other financial assets 4,112 119 - 1,209 5,440
Total financial assets 1,820,238 2,431,550 108,451 608,819 207,806 2425 5,659,388
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 3 - - 493,502 493,505
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions - - 169,941 - 169,941
Repurchase agreements - 1,081,402 - - 1,081,402
Customer deposits 71,253 842,505 254,938 1,491,135 - - 2,659,831
Other financial liabilities - 16,805 560 - 2,228 19,593
Total financial liabilities 71,256 1,940,712 255,498 2,154,578 2,228 4,42872
Net value 1,748,982 490,838 (147,047) (1,545,759) 207,806 80,206 1,235,116
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51.

(V)

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Market risks

Market risks refer to the risks of losses in thenlBs on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
business due to adverse changes in market pribesBank’s market risks mainly include foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Bank mes#s market risk through limit management
(including trading limit, risk limit and stop log¢isnit), daily review ofrisk sensitivities bond market
value, and market risk capital management. The Beskestablished and enhanced market risk
limit management system, specified and standardiaiedprocess and reporting of market risk
management. The internal audit department perfaodit on market risks management on a
regular basis. The Bank has regularly perform sttesting to monitor the possible market risk
under specific adverse incident in order to improwagket risk management.

(1) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank is set up and operates in China, the Bdokéign currency business is mainly in
USD and HKD. The Bank's loans to customers are ImairRMB and USD.

The Bank monitors the foreign exchange risk mathhpugh the management of exposure
limits.

The following table presents the structure analysfisthe Bank’s financial assets and
financial liabilities by currencies as at balanbeet date:

31/12/2012
UsD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’'000 RMB eqv’'000 RMB eqv’'000 RMB €§00

Financial assets

Balances with the Central Bank 1,004,825 911 81 - 1,005,817

Due from banks 13,138 424,120 8,281 46 445,585

Placements with banksd

other financial institution 95,000 193,761 - - 288,761

Financial assets held for trading 1,309,407 - - - 1,309,407

Interest receivable 19,775 6,883 - - 26,658

Loans and advances to customers 495,000 93,340 - - 588,340

Other financial assets 1,209 6,448 4 - 7,661
Total financial assets 2,938,354 725,463 8,366 46 3672,229

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 201,478 - - - 201,478
Placements from banks and

other financial institutions - 160,280 - - 160,28®
Repurchase agreements 392,000 - - - 392,000
Customer deposits 1,569,906 18,134 48 - 1,588,088
Interest payable 13,158 2,740 - - 15,898
Other financial liabilities 2,190 14,252 1,708 - 18150
Total financial liabilities 2,178,732 195,406 1,756 - 2,375,894
Net open position 759,622 530,057 6,610 46 1,296,38
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51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(V)
(1)

(2)

Market risks - continued

Foreign exchange risk - continued

31/12/2011
uUsD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’'000 RMB eqv’'000 RMB eqv’'000 RMB €§00

Financial assets

Balances with the Central Bank 526,750 1,859 97 - 528,706

Due from banks 307,892 46,620 16,164 - 370,676

Placements with banksd

other financial institution 1,800,000 396,957 - 2,196,957

Financial assets held for trading 1,755,557 - - 1,755,557

Interest receivable 24,865 8,307 - 33,172

Loans and advances to customers 544,500 183,644 - - 728,144

Other financial assets 1,209 4,166 5 - 5,380
Total financial assets 4,960,773 641,553 16,266 - 5,618,592
Financial liabilities

Due to banks and other

financial institutions 476,982 - - 476,982
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 30,000 135,469 - 165,469

Repurchase agreements 1,080,300 - - - 1,080,300

Customer deposits 2,563,046 37,025 59 - 2,600,130

Interest payable 15,768 1,202 - - 16,970

Other financial liabilities 226,598 (208,755) 1,750 - 19,593
Total financial liabilities 4,392,694 (35,059) 1,8m - 4,359,444
Net open position 568,079 676,612 14,457 - 1,259,18

The following table illustrates the impact of 5%pagciation or 5% depreciation of the spot
exchange rate and forward exchange rate of RMBnagaill foreign currencies owner's
equity of the Bank.

2012 2011
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
In owner’s equity In owner’s equity

RMB’000 RMB’000
Appreciate by 5% (20,127) (25,915)
Depreciate by 5% 20,127 25,915

Interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the impact of change in mamk&erest rate on fair value of financial
assets and liabilities of the balance sheet aretast income and expenses of the income
statement for the period. The Bank's foreign exgbabusiness lending rates and large
amount deposit rates primarily fluctuates with 8&nk’s funding cost while the RMB
business lending and deposit rates fluctuates nvittne permitted range provided by the
PBOC. The inter-bank placements and takings inteatss are determined by the market.
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51.

(V)

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Market risks - continued

(2)

Interest rate risk - continued

As of the balance sheet date, the interest-beassgts and liabilities of the Bank are as
follows:

31/12/2012
Non-
Within 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years Over 5 years interest bearing Total
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RNB'000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 607,734 - - - - 398083 1,005,817
Due from banks 445,585 - - - - - 445,585
Placements with banksd
other financial institution 87,996 106,482 94,283 - - - 288,761
Financial assets held for trading - 727,028 9,355 B3,024 - - 1,309,407
Interest receivable - - - - - 26,658 26,658
Loans and advances to customers - 297,000 291,340 - - - 588,340
Other financial assets - - - - - 7,661 7,661
Total financial assets 1,141,315 1,130,510 394,978 573,024 - 432,402 3,672,229
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 97,555 - 103,923 - - - 201,478
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 160,280 - - - - - 160,280
Repurchase agreements 392,000 - - - - - 392,000
Customer deposits 741,220 929 845,939 - - - 1,588,88
Interest payable - - - - - 15,898 15,898
Other financial liabilities - - - - - 18,150 18,150
Total financial liabilities 1,391,055 929 949,862 - - 34,048 2,375,894
Net open position (249,740) 1,129,581 (554,884) 5024 - 398,354 1,296,335
31/12/2011
Non-
Within 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years Over 5 years interest bearing Total
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RNB'000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 47,391 - - - - 481,35 528,706
Due from banks 370,676 - - - - - 370,676
Placements with banksd
other financial institution 1,957,523 - 239,434 - - - 2,196,957
Financial assets held for trading 640,715 504,389 36,800 473,653 - - 1,755,557
Interest receivable - - - - - 33,172 33,172
Loans and advances to customers 90,075 588,569 0M9,5 - - - 728,144
Other financial assets - - - - - 5,380 5,380
Total financial assets 3,106,380 1,092,958 425,734 473,653 - 519,867 5,618,592

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 3 - 476,979 - - - 476,982
Placements from banks and

other financial institutions - - 165,469 - - - 166,469
Repurchase agreements 1,080,300 - - - - - 1,080,300
Customer deposits 905,834 252,932 1,441,364 - - - 2,600,130
Interest payable - - - - - 16,970 16,970
Other financial liabilities - - - - - 19,593 19,593

Total financial liabilities 1,986,137 252,932 2,082 - - 36,563 4,359,444
Net open position 1,120,243 840,026 (1,658,078) 4633 - 483,304 1,259,148
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51.

(V)

52.

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Market risks - continued

(2)

Interest rate risk - continued
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on th&erest rates gap between the interest
bearing assets such as balances with the Centrdd; Bae from banks and other financial

institutions; loans and other receivables and @sebearing liabilities such as customer
deposits as of the balance sheet date. The upward@avnward change of 50 basis points
is used by management in evaluating the possibEngds in interest rates and the
corresponding interest rate risks.

The following table illustrates the impact of tmeliease or decrease of the interest rate of all
currencies by 50 basis points on the owner's egityie Bank in next year, based on the

structure of interest-bearing assets and interestibg liabilities as of the balance sheet

date.

2012 2011
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
In owner’s equity In owner’s equity

RMB’000 RMB’000
Increase by 50 basis points (5,834) (14,561)
Decrease by 50 basis points 5,834 14,561

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The valuation of the fair value is determined basadmarket related information and financial
instruments related information at a specific tithen determining the fair value of financial
instruments, the Bank considers the market pridb@best approximation of the fair value of the
financial instruments for which there is an actmarket. For financial instruments of which the
market does not exist, the Bank adopts other valuaechniques to determine the fair value of
these financial assets and financial liabilitiestéls please refer to note 4).

The fair values of financial assets and finandabilities are determined as follows

The fair values of financial assets and financiabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets determined with reference to quoted
market prices

The fair values of other financial assets and fomnliabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with rgéigeaccepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis or observable etgkces

The fair value of derivative instruments are catedl using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discount cash flowyamalis performed using the applicable
yield curve for the duration of the instruments fam-optional derivatives, and option

pricing models for optional derivatives.
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52. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

The following table illustrates the fair values tife Bank’s financial assets and financial

liabilities:
31/12/2012 31/12/2011
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Financial assets

Balances with the

Central Bank 1,005,817,133.91 1,005,817,133.91 8,71,078.17 528,706,078.17
Due from banks 445,585,298.61 445,585,298.61 3B0384.69 370,676,314.69

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 288,761,013.35 283, 013.35 2,196,956,700.00 2,196,956,700.00
Financial assets

held for trading 1,309,407,036.00 1,309,407,0836.01,755,557,401.00 1,755,557,401.00
Interest receivable 26,657,868.95 26,657,868.95 1733065.33 33,172,065.33
Loans and advances to
customers 588,339,675.00 588,339,675.00 728,1135 728,143,511.04
Other financial assets 7,661,222.77 7,661,222.77 3805243.51 5,380,243.51
Total financial assets 3,672,229,248.59 3,672,2805D 5,618,592,313.74 5,618,592,313.74

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other

financial institutions 201,478,412.47 201,478,412 476,982,076.68 476,982,076.68
Placements from banks and

other financial institutions 160,280,250.00 180,250.00 165,469,350.00 165,469,350.00
Repurchase agreements 392,000,000.00 392,000,0001080,300,000.00 1,080,300,000.00
Customer deposits 1,588,087,827.41 1,588,087,827.£1600,129,771.29 2,600,129,771.29
Interest payable 15,897,567.14 15,897,567.14 16,9%688.60 16,969,678.60
Other financial liabilities 18,150,014.86 18,150486 19,593,304.55 19,593,304.55

Total financial liabilities 2,375,894,071.88 2,3394,071.88  4,359,444,181.12 4,359,444,181.12

Level of fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of finadcassets and financial liabilities that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at Value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derfu@th quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those deifinged inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asselialility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: fair value measurements are those deffinged valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based osenbable market data (unobservable inputs).
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52.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

31/12/2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent RMRBy&ivalent

Held-for-trading financial assets - 1,309,407,086.0 - 1,309,407,036.00
Financial assets total - 1,309,407,036.00 - 1,309,47,036.00
31/12/2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent RMRB)&valent

Held-for-trading financial assets - 1,755,557,401.0 - 1,755,557,401.00

Financial assets total - 1,755,557,401.00 - 1,755,%7,401.00

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2aryd#ars of 2012 and 2011.

The total change in fair value derived from the PLTheld by the Bank is RMB 5,017,605.00
(2011: gain of RMB 42,455,570.30).

The Bank employs control processes to validate féne value of its financial instruments,
including those derived from pricing models. Thesatrol processes are designed to assure that
the values used for financial reporting are baselaservable inputs wherever possible. In the
event that observable inputs are not availablectimérol processes are designed to assure that the
valuation approach utilised is appropriate and sbastly applied and that the assumptions are
reasonable. These control processes include revoéwee pricing model’s theoretical soundness
and appropriateness by Morgan Stanley Group peetowith relevant expertise who are
independent from the trading desks.

Additionally, groups independent from the tradingiglons within the financial control, market
risk and credit risk management departments ppdieiin the review and validation of the fair
values generated from pricing models, as apprapri@here a pricing model is used to determine
fair value, recently executed comparable transastiand other observable market data are
considered for purposes of validating assumptiaoretying the model.

In the current year, the Bank’s financial assetaisueed at fair value comprise the government
bonds, PBOC bills, financial institution bonds arawtporate bonds. These financial assets are
valued using quoted prices in active markets whexilable. To the extent quoted prices are not
available, fair value is determined based on aatadn model that has as inputs interest rate yield
curves, cross-currency basis index spreads, anutrgocredit spreads for structures similar to the
bond in terms of issuer, maturity and seniority.nhe3e financial assets are generally categorised
in Levels 1 or 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

186
-59.



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

53. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassiembnform to the current year's presentation.

54. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Bank have beenoaepron [12 April] 2012 by the Board of
Directors.

* * END OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * *
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Appendix (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED
Taxable Income Reconciliation
For the year ended at 31 December 2012

Total
RMB
Total profit before tax 66,471,192.89
Add:
1. Commercial insurance expenses 833,468.67
2. Penalty occurred for this year 250,023.49
3. Amortisation expenses on intangible assets
in excess of tax deductible amount 1,189,843%0
4. Entertainment expenses in excess of tax dddeecmount 135,768.40
5. Loss arised from change in fair value of thads 5,017,605.00
6. Impairment loss not deductible 20,829,152.86
7. Defined benefit plan and staff incentive plan 1,947,894.65
30,203,756.57
Less:
1. Government bonds interest income deductiblerbetx 5,663,290.70
2. Deductible accural expenses from prior year 5@450.00
8,813,740.70
Taxable income for the year 87,861,208.76

Remarks: The Bank prepares this “Taxable IncomeRakation” according to the request from
Tax Bureau. This report is for reference only awmésinot form part of the audited
financial statements.
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Appendix (I1)
Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, THE HEAD OFFICE

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

ASSETS
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Due from inter-branch
Placements with banks and other financial instingi
Financial assets held for trading
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial instruments
Investment property
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Other assets
Operating fund to Branch

TOTALASSETS
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31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

703,118,483.48 49832,588.30
440,319,638.42 367,705,675.95
- 1,115,286.13
182,279,500.00 2,196,956,700.00
1,309,407,036.00Q,755,557,401.00
23,486,318.49  31,357,968.11
88,339,675.00 37843,511.04
18,852,614.00 18,852,614.00
1,782,754.22 2,640,774.16
4,219,452.66 5,458,379.62
29,692,265.60  23,416,577.55
100,000,000.00 100,0(0(WD

2,901,497,737.87 5,377,537,475.86

(Continued)



Appendix (I1)

Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, THE HEAD OFFICE

BALANCE SHEET - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Due to inter-branch

Placements from banks and other financial instingi

Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Employee benefit payable
Current tax

Interest payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY
Paid-in capital
Surplus reserves
Capital reserves
General reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY
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31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

- 459.51
96,145,359.57 1,742,937,646.33
160,280,250.00 165,469,350.00
392,000,000.00 1,080,300,000
830,537,803.71 1,003,661,720.73
623,490.73 1,041,877.88
3,302,897.85 9,952,777.48
9,253,051.89  11,988,303.68
271,493.49 6,686,815.13
17,324,202.90  20,034,913.20

1,509,738,550.14 4,042,073,868.9

1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
50,069,597.39  44,966,409.60
83,250.00 (46,319.58)
20,478,000.01  33,316,907.91
321,128,340.33  257,226,613.99

1,391,759,187.73 1,335,4631692

2,901,497,7387 5,377,537,475.86




Appendix (I1)

Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, THE HEAD OFFICE

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Operating income
Net interest income

Interest income

Interest income- inter branch

Interest expenses

Interest expenses- inter branch
Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Investment income

Losses from changes in fair value
Exchange losses

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating expenses
Impairment reversal on assets

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less: Income tax expenses

NET PROFIT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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2012 2011
RMB RMB

97,348,213.16  133,908,241.71

28,538,481.61  55,342,596.48

167,517,956.48 204,545,000.36
48,763.05 1,56340.94

68,922,403.18  98,109,896.50
70,105,834.74 52,659,848.32

78,730,666.34  8436,769.00

83,231,403.15 87,998/3.61
4,500,736.81 3,25904.61

4,380,830.00 (28,154,695.62)
(5,017,605.00) 41,819,397.30
(10,526,334.66) (21,042,796.97)
1,242,174.87  1,206,971.52

28,833,238.22  42,996,409.91

9,463,903.89 185838
19,033,452.10  21,867,466.17
335,882.23 7,82082.96

68,514,974.94  90,911,831.80

74,215.73 272,326.51
330,385.70 39,798.53

68,258,804.97  91,144,359.78

12,092,798.74 16,604,401

56,166,006.23  74,539,957.81

129,569.58 (46,319.58)

56,295,575.81  74,49363




Appendix (I1)

Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, BEIJING BRANCH

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

ASSETS
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Due from the Head Office
Placements with banks
Interest Receivables
Loans and advances to customers
Fixed assets
Other assets

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Due to the Head Office
Customer deposits
Employee benefit payable
Current tax
Interest payable
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY
Operating fund
Capital reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

31/12/2012 31/12/2011
RMB RMB

302,698,650.43 32(3,489.87
5,265,660.19 2,970,638.74
96,145,359.57 1,742,985.83
106,481,513.35 -
3,171,550.46 1,814,097.22
500,000,000.00  35000,000.00
2,650,031.32 3,840,883.64
1,616,961.25 1,475,963.69

1,018,029,726.57 2,135,412,719.49

408,412.47 476,981,617.17
- 1,115,286.13
757,550,023.70 1,596,468,050.56
6,613,456.74 4,693,120.34
556,005.42 1,194,175.21
6,644,515.25 4,981,374.92
22,000.00 (71,271.26)
1,084,562.01 1,115,300.97

973,948,975.59 2,086,477,654.04

100,000,000.00  100,000,000.00
66,000.00 (213,813.78)
(55,985,249.02)  (50,851,120.77)

44,080,750.98 48,935,065.45

1,018,029,7267 2,135,412,719.49
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Appendix (I1)
Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, BEIJING BRANCH
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Operating income 42,456,578.00 22,319,719.37
Net interest income 36,870,180.33 22,080,008.28
Interest income 35,466,174.45 21,495,893.20
Interest income inter-branch 70,105,834.74 2848.32
Interest expenses 68,653,065.81 50,508,392.30
Interest expenses inter-branch 48,763.05 1,56748).94
Net fee and commission income 5,570,876.10 212,3085
Fee and commission income 5,572,356.60 1,7915856
Fee and commission expenses 1,480.50 1,5789%47.9
Exchange gains 15,521.57 27,402.54
Operating expenses 44,355,214.56 41,382,700.25
Business tax and surcharges 2,041,457.48 1,26599.83
Operating expenses 42,313,757.08 40,117,200.42
Operating loss (1,898,636.56) (19,062,980.88)
Add: Non-operating income 111,024.48 57,586.59
Less: Non-operating expense - 33.59
LOSS BEFORE TAX (1,787,612.08) (19,005,427.88)
Less: Income tax expenses 3,346,516.17 902,061.65
NET LOSS (5,134,128.25) (19,907,489.53)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 279,813.78 (213,813.78)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (4,854,314.47)  (20,121,3(81)
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